

Notice Inviting Tender

Dated: 16-12-2024

Ref No. ITI/PKD/PE/2024/1504

Issued by

ITI Limited

(A Govt. of India Undertaking)
Palakkad Plant
Kanjikode West
Palakkad – 678 623
Kerala

www.itiltd.in

PART-A

SECTION 1

INTRODUCTION & PREAMBLE

1. Introduction

- 1.1. ITI Limited, is a scheduled "A" Public Sector Undertaking under the Ministry of Communication, Department of Telecommunication, Government of India, with its Registered & Corporate Office at ITI Bhavan, Dooravaninagar, Bengaluru 560 016, Karnataka, India (hereinafter referred to as the Company)
- 1.2. The Company is having multiple production units in India located at Bengaluru in Karnataka State, Palakkad in Kerala State, Rae Bareli, Naini & Mankapur in state of Uttar Pradesh and Srinagar in J&K State and also having Network System Unit in Bengaluru in Karnataka State and Regional Offices in all the major cities in India.
- 1.3. For more details please visit our website http://www.itiltd.in

2. Description of Work:

2.1. Painting Work of Electrical Street Light Poles at ITI Limited, Palakkad.

3. Important Dates

S1. No.	Description	Schedule	
1	Tender Publishing Date	16-12-2024	
2	Site Visit	17-12-2024 to 04-01-2025 (Office Hours)	
3	Last date of seeking Clarification by the bidder	28-12-2024	
4	Last date for submission of Bid	07-01-2025	
5	Bid Validity Period	90 days from the Tender opening	
6	Earnest Money Deposit	Rs 8,700/- through online	
7	Opening of Technical Bid	08-01-2025	
8	Opening of Financial Bid	To be informed later to successful bidders in the technical bid	

S1. No.	Description	Schedule
9	Mode of submission	The Technical & Financial Bid shall be uploaded on https://itilimited.ewizard.in/ (online- tendering platform)only Contact person for e-tendering: Gagan, Mob: 8448288987
10	Time of Completion of work	90 days

SINCE THIS IS A WORKS CONTRACT, BENEFITS TO MSEs UNDER PUBLIC PROCUREMENT POLICY WILL NOT BE APPLICABLE.

Company reserves the right to verify the credentials of the contractors before awarding the work. M/s. ITI Limited reserves the right to accept or reject, all or any Tender in full or part without assigning any reason thereof.

MANAGER (MM&CS) ITI LIMITED KANJIKODE WEST PALAKKAD- 678 623

Phone: +91 0491 2564342

E-Mail: plant_pkd@itiltd.co.in

SECTION 2

NOTICE INVITING TENDER

1. Objective of the NIT

1.1. This Notification of Invitation to Tender (NIT) for the selection of a contractor for the painting work of electrical street light poles at ITI Limited, Palakkad. The objective of this NIT is to engage a qualified contractor who can efficiently execute the required tasks in compliance with the outlined specifications.

2. Scope of the Work

- **2.1. Rust Removal:** All street light poles—including round single bracket, round double bracket, round pole top lantern, rail pole, and gate pole—must have rust removed using appropriate methods such as emery paper rubbing.
- **2.2. Inspection**: After rust removal, a thorough inspection must be conducted in conjunction with the Electrical In-charge to ensure all standards are met before proceeding.
- **2.3. Painting Process:** The painting shall commence with two coats of Red Oxide Metal Primer (provided by ITI Limited), followed by one coat of Bright Aluminum paint (also provided by ITI Limited). It is crucial that all markings on the poles ensure black numeric digits are contained within a yellow circle.
- **2.4. Weather Consideration:** All painting work must be executed under dry weather conditions to guarantee optimal results.
- **2.5. Material Provision:** ITI Limited will supply the primer and paint; all other necessary materials should be provided by the contractor.
- **2.6. Site Visit Encouragement:** It is highly encouraging bidders to visit the site prior to submitting their quotations to gain a comprehensive understanding of the requirements outlined in this notice.
- **2.7. Comprehensive Rates:** Please note that rates quoted should encompass painting work on electrical street light poles as well as required cleaning materials, items, PPE & safety kits, and painting brushes; no separate rate should be quoted for individual items.
- **2.8. Damage Responsibility:** Any damages caused to existing infrastructure or utilities during this contract will need to be repaired at the bidder's expense. The bidder will also be responsible for rectifying any defects caused during the contract period.

2.9. Safety Measures: Necessary supports and protection materials are also part of what's required for this Work that enhances to maintaining high safety standards.

3. Eligibility Criteria

- **3.1.** Those contractors who have successfully completed successful completion the Painting work satisfying the below conditions shall enclose relevant work orders in proof of the same:
 - 3.1.1. Three Similar completed works costing not less than the amount equal to 40% of the estimated cost OR
 - 3.1.2. Two Similar completed works costing not less than the amount equal to 50% of the estimated cost OR
 - 3.1.3. One Similar completed works costing not less than the amount equal to 80% of the estimated cost.
- **3.2.** The bidder should possess valid GSTIN, PAN and copies of the same should be enclosed.
- **3.3.** EMD Earnest Money Deposit of Rs. 8,7000/-(Rupees Eight Thousand Seven Hundred Only) through online. The EMD would form part of the technical bid. Technical bids without EMD will be rejected.
- **3.4.** The Power of Attorney or authorization, or any other document consisting of adequate proof of the ability of the signatory to bind the bidder, in original, when the power of attorney is a special "Power of Attorney" relating to the specific tender of ITI Limited, Palakkad only. A notarized true copy of the "Power of Attorney" shall also be accepted in lieu of the original, if the power of attorney is a general "Power of Attorney". However, photocopy of such notarized true copy shall not be accepted. The original of the power of Attorney should be submitted to ITI, in the case of obtaining of the order.
- **3.5.** Bidder will upload a self-certificate stating that his firm has not been blacklist by any Govt/PSUs/CPSUs/State Govt. agencies in recent past and also not under liquidation/court receivership/similar proceedings.

3.6. Site Visit Report Letter

The bidder shall visit the site, carry out the survey and understand the requirements in to. The bidder shall obtain a certificate to the effect from the ITI Limited and submit the certificate Site Visit Report Letter indicating that the survey is carried out by the bidder as per Annexure-III. The tender submitted without site visit report letter will be rejected out rightly and no further communication on this will be entertained, under any circumstances. The site visits are permitted only during the permitted days and working hours of the company. The interested bidders are expected to avail prior permission from ITI to visit the site for inspection by sending an email to plant_pkd@itiltd.co.in.

4. Conditional Price Bid will not be accepted.

4.1. The rates and / or prices in any form or for any reasons should not be disclosed in the technical or other parts of the bid except in the commercial bid. In case of failure to do so the bid will be **rejected** summarily.

5. Evaluation Process

- **5.1.** After opening of the technical bids, the bidders will be technically evaluated as per the eligibility criteria defined in clause 3 of Section-II. The technically qualified bids only will be processed for financial bid evaluation.
- **5.2.** Any effort on the part of the bidder to influence the bid evaluation process or award of contract may result in the rejection of the bid.

6. Financial Evaluation:

6.1. The Financial Bid will be opened only for those bidders who are qualified in the technical evaluation. The format for quoting financial bid is set out in Annexure-IV. Any deviations to the format will be liable for rejection of the bid.

SECTION 3

BIDDER'S INSTRUCTIONS

1. TENDER SUBMISSION:

The Bid shall be submitted in two parts in online- tendering platform only

- 1.1. Part-I: Technical Bid
- **1.2.** Part-II: Price Bid

The offer should strictly be submitted in a two bid system i.e., Technical Bid and Price Bid separately.

2. OPENING OF TENDERS:

Techno-Commercial Bids will be opened in online- tendering platform at prescribed Time and Date.

3. TECHNICAL BID

Technical bid shall contain the following

- **3.1.** Proof of Work Experience
- **3.2.** Copy of the PAN
- **3.3.** Copy of the GST registration certificate
- **3.4.** Site Visit Report Letter
- **3.5.** Complete set of NIT document in original form duly filled & signed using signin process and digital signature by the bidder on each page of the tender

- documents as a token of having accepted its contents including General terms & conditions for contract works, Volume-I.
- **3.6.** Copy Power of attorney in case, authorized representative has signed the tender documents.
- 3.7. Copy of EMD
- **3.8.** An Integrity Pact shall be signed in a legally valid stamp paper of Rs 100 as per the Format given at Annexure-II
- **3.9.** Every document submitted by the bidder should be signed by the authorized representative of the organization.
- **3.10.** Self-certificate / declaration for stating that his firm has not been blacklist by any Govt/PSUs/CPSUs/State Govt. agencies in recent past and also not under liquidation/court receivership/similar proceedings for

The above said documents are to be uploaded in the technical section of the online bid. Only PDF documents needs to be uploaded. Any document not in PDF format, the same needs to be converted into PDF format for uploading

4. PRICE BID

4.1. Prices / amount has to be properly filled up in the bid format of the NIT. The prices entered will be final. Bids with corrections or overwriting will be rejected.

SECTION 4

ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR VENDORS

The bidders are required to submit soft copies of their bid electronically on the e-Wizard Portal using valid Digital Signature Certificates. Below mentioned instructions are meant to guide the bidders for registration on the e-Wizard Portal, prepare their bids in accordance with the requirements and submit their bids online on the e-Wizard Portal. For more information, bidders may visit the Portal (https://itilimited.ewizard.in/)

1. REGISTRATION PROCESS ON ONLINE PORTAL

- a) Bidders to enroll on the e-Procurement module of the portal https://itilimited.ewizard.in/ by clicking on the link "Bidder Enrolment".
- b) The bidders to choose a unique username and assign a password for their accounts. Bidders are advised to register their valid email address and mobile numbers as part of the registration process. This would be used for any communication from the e-Wizard Portal.

- c) Bidders to register upon enrolment, with their valid Digital Signature Certificate (Class III Certificates with signing and Encryption key) issued by any Certifying Authority recognized by CCA India with their profile.
- d) Only one valid DSC should be registered by a bidder. Please note that the bidders are responsible to ensure that they do not lend their DSCs to others which may lead to misuse.
- e) Bidder then logs in to the site through the secured log-in by entering their user ID/ password and the password of the DSC / e-Token.
- f) After registration send mail to Helpdesk: helpdeskeuniwizarde@gmail.com for Account activation.
- g) As per portal norms Registration Fee will be applicable.

2. TENDER DOCUMENTS SEARCH

- a) Various built-in options are available in the e-Wizard Portal like Department name, Tender category, Estimated value, Date, other keywords, etc. to search for a tender published on the Online Portal.
- b) Once the bidders have selected the tenders they are interested in, they may download the required documents/tender schedules. These tenders can be moved to the respective 'Interested tenders' folder.
- c) The bidder should make a note of the unique Tender No assigned to each tender, in case they want to obtain any clarification/help from the Helpdesk.

3. BID PREPARATION

- a) Bidder should take into account any corrigendum published on the tender document before submitting their bids.
- b) Please go through the tender advertisement and the tender document carefully to understand the documents required to be submitted as part of the bid.
- c) Please note the number of covers in which the bid documents have to be submitted, the number of documents - including the names and content of each of the document that needs to be submitted. Any deviations from these may lead to rejection of the bid.
- d) Bidder, in advance, should get ready the bid documents to be submitted as indicated in the tender document/schedule and generally, they can be in PDF/XLSX/PNG, etc. formats.

4. BID SUBMISSION

- a) Bidder to log into the site well in advance for bid submission so that he/she uploads the bid in time i.e. on or before the bid submission time. Bidder will be responsible for any delay due to other issues.
- b) The bidder to digitally sign and upload the required bid documents one by one as indicated in the tender document.
- c) Bidders to note that they should necessarily submit their financial bids in the prescribed format given by department and no other format is acceptable.
- d) The server time (which is displayed on the bidders' dashboard) will be considered as the standard time for referencing the deadlines for submission of the bids by the bidders, the opening of bids, etc. The bidders should follow this time during bid submission.
- e) All the documents being submitted by the bidders would be encrypted using PKI encryption techniques to ensure the secrecy of the data, which cannot be viewed by unauthorized persons until the time of bid opening.
- f) The uploaded tender documents become readable only after the tender opening by the authorized bid openers.
- g) Upon the successful and timely submission of bids, the portal will give a successful bid submission message & a bid summary will be displayed with the bid no. and the date & time of submission of the bid with all other relevant details.
- h) The off-line tender shall not be accepted and no request in this regard will be entertained whatsoever.
- i) As per portal norms Tender Processing Fee will be applicable.

5. AMENDMENT OF BID DOCUMENT

At any time prior to the deadline for submission of proposals, the department reserve the right to add/modify/delete any portion of this document by the issuance of a Corrigendum, which would be published on the website and will also be made available to the all the Bidder who has been issued the tender document. The Corrigendum shall be binding on all bidders and will form part of the bid documents.

6. ASSISTANCE TO BIDDERS

a) Any queries relating to the tender document and the terms and conditions contained there in should be addressed to the Tender Inviting Authority for a tender or the relevant contact person indicated in the tender.

- b) Any queries relating to the process of online bid submission or queries relating to e- Wizard Portal, in general, may be directed to the 24x7 e-Wizard Helpdesk. The contact number for the helpdesk 8448288994/86/87/89/88/81/90/92/82 011-49606060, 07903269552, 9355030608, 9055030613, 7903810198, 9355030606, 9315620706, 9355030623, 9355030628, 8800526452, 9205898228, 9122643040, 9355030604, eprochelpdesk.01@gmail.com, eprochelpdesk.44@gmail.com eprochelpdesk.06@gmail.com
- c) The tender inviting authority has the right to cancel this e-tender or extend the due date of receipt of the bid(s).
- d) The bid should be submitted through e-Wizard portal (https://itilimited.ewizard.in/)only.
- e) All payments should be done through e-Wizard Payment gateway

General Terms & Conditions

for

CONTRACT WORKS VolumeI

Name of Work: Painting Work of Electrical Street Light Poles at ITI Limited, Palakkad.



Plant & Civil Engineering Department

ITI LIMITED

KANJIKODE WEST, PALAKKAD -678 623

CONTENTS

SL.	Description	Page No.
No.	2 esci ip ive ii	1 430 1101
1	Tender Form	12
2	General Conditions of Contract	13
3	Scope and Performance	15
4	Earnest Money Deposit and Security Deposit	17
5	Deviations / Variations Extent and Pricing	17
6	Model Rule for Labour Welfare	27
7	Sub-Contracts	37
8	Valuation and Payment	43
9	Arbitration and Laws	47
10	Contractors Labour Regulations	49
11	Register of workmen	55
12	Employment Card	56
13	Register of wages- cum- Muster Roll	57
14	Register of Fines	59
15	Wage Slip	60
16	Safety Code	65
17	Special conditions	69

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

Interpretation and Definitions

Singular & Plural:

1. Where the contest so requires, words imparting the singular only also include the plural and Vice-Versa

Headings and Marginal notes to conditions:

2. Headings and Marginal notes to these General Conditions shall not be deemed to form part thereof or be taken into consideration in the interpretation or construction there of or of the contract.

Definitions:

- 3. a) "COMPANY" shall mean the "ITI Limited" having its registered office at ITI BHAVAN, DOORVANI NAGAR, BENGALURU-560 016 in the State of Karnataka and includes a duly authorised representative of the Company or any other person empowered in this behalf by the Company to discharge all or any of its functions.
 - b) The 'Accepting Authority' shall mean the Management of the Company, and includes a duly authorised representative of the Company or any other person empowered in this behalf by the Company.
 - c) The contract' shall mean the notice inviting the tender, the tender and acceptance thereof and the formal agreement, if any, executed between the company and the contractor together with the documents referred to therein including these conditions with appendices and any special conditions, the specification, designs, drawings, schedule of quantities with rates and amounts and schedule of rates. All these documents taken together shall be deemed to form one contract and shall be complementary to one another.
 - d) The 'Contractor' shall mean the individual or firm or Company whether incorporated or not, undertaking the works and shall include legal representative of such individual or persons composing such firm or Company as the case may be and permitted assigns of such individual or firm or Company.
 - e) The 'Contract Sum' shall mean:
 - i. In the case of Lump Sum Contracts the sum for which the tender is accepted;
 - ii. In the case of percentage Rate Contracts the estimated value of the works as mentioned in the tender adjusted by the Contractor's percentage;
 - iii. In the case of item Rate Contracts the cost of the work arrived at after extension of the quantities shown in Schedule of Quantities by the item quoted by the tenderers for the various items.
 - f) A 'Day' shall mean a day of 24 hours from midnight to mid night irrespective of the number of hours worked in that day.

- g) 'Engineer-in-charge shall mean the Engineering Officer appointed by the Company or his duly authorised representative who shall direct, supervise and be in charge of the work for the purpose of the contract.
- h) 'Excepted Risks' are due to riots (otherwise than among contractor's employees) and civil commotion (in so far as both these are uninsurable), war (whether declared or not), invasion, act of foreign enemies, hostilities, civil war, rebellion, revolution insurrection, military or usurped power any acts of Government, damage from aircrafts, acts of God such as earthquake, lighting and unprecedented floods and other causes over which the Contractor has no control and accepted as such by the Accepting Authority or causes solely due to use or occupation by the Company of part of works in respect of which a certificate of completion has been issued or a cause solely due to Company's faulty design of works.
- i) 'Market Rate' shall be the rate as decided by the Engineer-in-Charge on the basis of the cost of materials and labour at the site where the work is to be executed plus ten (10) percent to cover all overheads and profit.
- j) Schedule (s) referred to in these conditions shall mean the relevant schedule(s) annexed to the tender papers issued by the Company or the Standard Schedule Rates prescribed by the Company and the amendments thereto issued from time to time.
- k) The 'Site' shall mean lands and /or other places on, under, in or through which the work is to be executed under the contract including any other lands or places which may be allotted by the Company or used for the purposes of the Contract.
- l) 'Temporary Works' shall mean all temporary works of every kind required in or about the execution, completion or maintenance of the works.
- m) 'Urgent Works' shall mean any urgent measures which, in the opinion of the Engineer-in-Charge become necessary during the progress of the works to obviate any risk or accident or failure or which become necessary for security.
- n) A 'Week' shall mean seven days without regard to the number of hours worked in any day in this week.
- o) The 'Works' shall mean the work to be executed in accordance with the contact or part(s) thereof as the case may be and shall include all extra or additional, altered or substituted works or temporary and urgent works as required for performance of the Contract.

SCOPE AND PERFORMANCE

Works to be carried out

5. The works to be carried out under the contract shall, except as otherwise provided in these conditions, include all labour, materials, tools, plant, equipment and transport which may be require in preparation of and for and in the full and entire execution and completion of the works. The description given in the schedule of quantities shall, unless otherwise stated, be held to include waste on materials, carriage and cartage, carrying in return of empties, hoisting, setting, fitting and fixing in position and all other labours necessary in and for the full entire execution and completion as aforesaid in accordance with good practice and recognised principles.

Inspection of site:

6. The contractor shall inspect and examine the site and its surroundings and shall satisfy himself before submitting his tender as to the nature of the ground and subsoil (so far as is practicable), the form and nature of the Site, the quantities and nature of work and materials necessary for the completion of the works and means of access to the Site, the accommodation he may require and in general shall himself obtain all necessary information as to risks, contingencies and other circumstances which may influence or effect his tender. No extra charge consequent on any misunderstanding or otherwise shall be allowed.

Sufficiency of Tender:

7. The Contractor shall be deemed to have satisfied himself before tendering as to the correctness and sufficiency of his tender for the works and of the rates and prices quoted in the Schedule of Quantities, which rates and prices shall, except as otherwise provided, cover all his obligations under the contract in all matters and things necessary for the proper completion and maintenance of works.

Discrepancies and Adjustment of Errors

- 8. The several documents forming the contract are to be taken as mutually explanatory of one another, detailed drawing being followed in preference to small scale drawings and figured dimensions in preference to scale and special conditions in preference to General Conditions.
- 8.1) In the case of discrepancy between Schedule of Quantities, the specifications and / the Drawings, the following order of preference shall be observed.
 - (a) Description in Schedule of Quantities
 - (b) Particular specifications and Special Conditions if any
 - (c) Drawings
 - (d) General Specifications

- 8.2) If there are varying or conflicting provisions made in any one document forming part of the contract, the Accepting Authority shall be deciding Authority with regard to the intention of the documents.
- 8.3) Any error in description, quantity or rate in Schedule of Quantities or any omission there from shall not vitiate the contract or release the Contractor from the execution of the whole or any part of the works comprised therein according to drawings as specifications or from any of his obligations under the contract.
- 8.4) If on cheque there are found to be differences between the rates given by Contractor in words and figures or in the amount worked out by him in the Schedule of Quantities and general summary, the same shall be adjusted in accordance with the following rules:
 - a) In the event of a discrepancy between description in words and figures quoted by a tenderers, in the rates which corresponds to the amount worked out by the contractor shall be taken as correct, when the amount of an item is not worked out by the contractor or it does not the corresponds to the rate written either in figures or in words, the rate quoted by the Contractor in words shall be taken as correct.
 - b) In the event of an error occurring in the amount column of Schedule of Quantities as a result of wrong extension of the unit rates and quantity, the unit rate shall be regarded, as firm and extension shall be amended on the basis of the rate.
 - c) All errors in totaling in the amount column and in carrying forward totals shall be corrected.
 - d) The totals of various sections of Schedule of Quantities as amended shall be carried over to the General Summary and the tender-sum amended accordingly. The tendered sum so altered shall, for the purpose of the tender, be substituted for the sum originally tendered and considered for acceptance instead of the original sum quoted by the tenderer. Any rounding off totals in various sections of Schedule of Quantities or in General Summary, by the tenderers, shall be ignored.
 - e) In case of lump sum contracts based on Bills of Quantities (Quantities not shown as provisional), should any error in quantities or any omissions of items be discovered, the cumulative effect of which varies the contract sum by more than 50% or Rs.20, 000/- whichever is less, then the errors shall be rectified and rectification dealt with as for deviations/variations under conditions 10&11 hereof, and the value thereof shall be added or deducted from the contract sum, as the case may be provided that there shall be no rectification of any errors, omissions or wrong estimates in the prices inserted by the contractor in the Bill of Quantities.

The Earnest Money Deposit and Security Deposit:

- 9. (a) Contractor shall deposit EMD through online. Tenders that are not accompanied by Earnest Money Deposit are liable to be rejected.
 - b) The Security Deposit shall remain at the entire disposal of the Company as a Security for the satisfactory execution and completion of works in accordance with the Conditions of the Contract.
 - c) The Company shall be at liberty to deduct and appropriate from the Security Deposit such compensations and dues as may be payable by the Contractor under the contract and appropriation will be made good by further deduction from the Contractor's subsequent interim bills, in the same manner as aforesaid, until the security deposit is restored to its full limit mentioned above.
 - d) Refund of Security Deposit: 100% after completion of the defects liability period of One year on the Engineer-in-Charge certifying in writing that the work has been completed as per condition 31 hereof etc.
 - e) The EMD paid by the unsuccessful Contractors will be refunded to them without bearing any interest.
 - f) On expiry of the Defects liability period (referred to in condition 33 hereof) or on payment of the amount of the final bill payable in accordance with condition 49, whichever is later, Engineer-in-Charge shall on demand from the Contractor, refund to him the remaining portion of the Security Deposit, provided Engineer-in-Charge is satisfied that there is no demand outstanding against the Contractor.
 - g) Refund of Security Deposit: -

100% after completion of the defects liability period of One year.

Deviation/Variations Extent & Pricing

10. The Engineer-in-Charge shall have power (i) to make alterations in, omissions from, additions to or substitutions for the original Specifications, drawings, design, and instructions that may appear to him to be necessary or advisable during the progress of the work, and (ii) to omit a part of the works in case of non-availability of a portion of the site or any other reason, and the Contractor shall be bound to carry out the works in accordance with any instruction given to him in writing signed by the Engineer-in-Charge and such alterations, omission, additions, or substitution shall form part of the Contract as if originally provided therein and any altered, additional or substituted which the Contractor may be directed to do in the manner above specified as part of the works, shall be carried out by the Contractor on the same conditions in all respect including price on which he agreed to do the main work except as hereinafter provided. No work shall be ordered by the Engineer-in-Charge as a deviation and in the event of any deviation being ordered which in the opinion of the contractor changes the original nature of the contractor, he shall nevertheless carry it out and the disagreement as to the nature of work and the rate to be paid thereof shall be resolved in accordance with condition 54.

Such deviations/variations shall however be limited to the following:

- (I) Lump sum contracts based on drawings and specifications at 10% of contract value awarded.
- (II) All other Contracts
 - a) Where the estimated cost does not exceed Rs.10 Lakhs at 20% of contract value awarded.
 - b) Where the estimated cost exceeds Rs10Lakhs at 10% of contract value warded.
- 10.1) The time for completion of the work shall, in the event of any deviation resulting in additional cost over the contract sum being ordered, be extended as follows if requested by the contractor.
 - (a) In the proportion which the additional cost of the altered, additional or substituted work, bears to the original contract sum; plus.
 - (b) 25% of the time calculated in (a) above or such further additional time as may be considered reasonable by the Engineer-in-Charge.

If any such item of work is carried out by the Contractor on the instructions of the Engineer-in-Charge, which is not covered by the "accepted schedule of rates", rates for additional, altered or substituted work shall be worked out in accordance with the following provisions in their respective order.

- (i) If the rate for the additional, altered or substituted work are specified in the contract for similar nature of the work, the Contractor is bound to carry out the additional, altered or substituted work at the same rates as are specified in the contract for the work.
- (ii) If the rate for the additional, altered or substituted work are not specifically provided in the contract for the work, the rates will be derived from the rates for a similar class of work as are specified in the contract for the work.
- (iii) If the altered, additional or substituted work include any work for which no rates is specified in the contract for the work and which cannot be derived from the rates for a similar class of work on the contract, then such work shall be carried out at the rates entered in C.P.W.D, D.S.R, 2016 plus or minus percentage which the corresponding tendered amount bears to the estimated cost of the entire work put to tender.
- (iv) If the altered, additional or substituted work cannot be determined in the manner specified in the sub clauses (i) to (iii) above, then the contractor shall within seven days of the date of receipt of the order to carry out the work, inform Engineer-in-charge of the rate which it is his intention to charge for such class of work, supported by analysis of rate or rates claimed and Engineer-in-Charge shall determine the rate or rates and pay the contractor accordingly. However the Engineer-in-Charge, by notice in writing will be at full liberty to cancel his order to carry out such class of work and arrange to carry it out in such manner, as he may

consider advisable. But under no circumstances, the contractor shall suspend the work on the plea of non- settlement of rates of items falling under this clause.

Suspension of Works

- 11(a) The contractor shall, on receipt of the order in writing of the Engineer-in-Charge suspend the progress of the works or any part thereof for such time and in such manner as the Engineer-in-Charge, may consider necessary for any of the following reasons:
 - (i) On account of any default on the part of the contractor, or
 - (ii) For proper execution of the works or part thereof for reasons other than the default of the contractor; or
 - iii). For safety of the works or part thereof.

 The Contractor shall, during such suspension, properly protect and secure the works to the extent necessary and carry out the instructions given in that behalf by the Engineer-in-Charge.
- 11(b) If the suspension is ordered for reasons (ii) and (iii) in sub Para (a) above.
 - (i) The Contractor shall be entitled to an extension of the time equal to period of very such suspension plus 25% and
 - (ii) If the total period of all such suspension exceeds thirty days, the Contractor shall, in addition be entitled to compensation, as the Engineer-in-Charge may consider reasonable, in respect of salaries and /or wages paid by the Contractor to his employees and labour at site, remaining idle during the period of suspension, provided the Contractor submits his claim supported by details to the Engineer-in-Charge within 14 days of the expiry of the period of 30 days.
 - c) If the works or part thereof are /is suspended on the orders of the Engineer-in-Charge for more than three months at a time, except when suspension is ordered for a reason (i) in sub- Para (a) above, the Contractor may after receipt of such order serve written notice on the Engineer-in-Charge requiring permission within fifteen days from receipt by the Engineer-in-Charge of the said notice to proceed with the works or part thereof in regard to which progress has been suspended and if such permission is not granted within that time, the Contractor to treat the suspension, where it affects only a part of the works as an omission of such part by the Company under condition or where it affects the whole of the works, as an abandonment of the works by the Company shall within ten days of expiring of such period of 15 days give notice in writing of his intentions to the Engineer-in-Charge. In the event of the Contractor treating the suspension as an abandonment of the Contract by the Company, he shall have no claim on payment of any compensation on account of any profit or advantage which he may have derived from the execution of the work in full but which he could not derive in consequence of the abandonment. He shall, however, be entitled to compensation, as the Engineer-in-Charge may consider reasonable, in respect of salaries and / or wages paid by him to the employees and labour at site, remaining idle in

consequence and of materials collected which could not be utilised on the works, provided the Contractor submits his claim supported by the details to the Engineer-in-Charge within 28 days of the expiry of the period of 3 months.

Time and Extension for Delay

- 12. The time allowed for execution of the works as specified in the contract or the extended time in accordance with these conditions shall be the essence of the contract. The execution of the works shall commence from the 15th day after the day on which the Engineer-in-Charge issues written orders to commence the work or from the date of handling over of the site whichever is later. If the contractor commits default in commencing the execution of the work as aforesaid, Company shall without prejudice to any other right or remedy be at liberty to forfeit the earnest money absolutely.
- As soon as possible after the contract is concluded the Engineer-in-Charge and the Contractor shall agree upon a Time and Progress Chart. The Chart shall be prepared in direct relation to the time stated in the contract documents for completion of items of the works. It shall indicate the forecast of the dates of commencement and completion of various trades or sections of the work and may be amended as necessary by agreement between the Engineer-in-Charge and the Contractor within the limitations of time imposed in the contract documents, and further to ensure good progress during the execution of the work the contractor shall in all case in which the time allowed for any work exceeds one month (save for special jobs where different progress schedule is specified) complete 1/8th of the whole of the work before 1/4th of the whole time allowed in the contract has elapsed; 3/8th of the work before one half of such time has elapsed and 3/4th before 3/4th of such time has elapsed.
- 12(2) If the works be delayed by
 - (a) force majeure, or
 - (b) abnormally bad weather, or
 - (c) (c) serious loss or damage by fire, or
 - (d) civil commotion, local combination of workmen, strike or lockout, affecting any of the trades ,employed on the work ,or
 - (e) delay on the part of other contractors or tradesmen engaged by Company in executing work not forming part of the contract, or
 - (f) non-availability of stores, which are responsibility of Company to supply, or
 - (g) non availability or break-down of tools or plant to be supplied or supplied by company, or
 - (h) any other cause which, in the absolute discretion of the Company is beyond the Contractor's control; then upon the happening of any such event causing delay, the Contractor shall immediately give notice thereof in writing to the Engineer-in-Charge but shall nevertheless use constantly his best endeavors to prevent or make good the delay and shall do all that may be reasonably required to the satisfaction of Engineer-in-Charge to proceed with the works.

- 12(3) Request for extension of time, to be eligible for consideration, shall be made by the Contractor in writing within fourteen days of the happening of the event causing delay. The contractor may also, if practicable, indicate in such a request a period for which extension is desired.
- 12(4) In any such case the Company may give a fair and reasonable extension of time for completion of works. Such extension shall be communicated to the contractor by the Engineer-in-Charge in writing within 3 months of the date of receipt of such request by the Engineer-in-Charge.

Plant and Equipment

- 13. The contractor shall arrange at his expense at his own expense all tools plant and equipment (hereinafter referred to as T &P) required for execution of the work, except the items which may be given to him on hire by the Company. Company's T&P hired to the Contractor shall be conveyed by him at his expense from the place of issue to the site and back.
- 13(1) If the contractor requires any item of T&P on hire from the Company over and above the requirements indicated by him at the time of submitting his tender, the Company will, if such item is available, hire it to the Contractor at a rate to be fixed by the Engineer-in- Charge.
- 13(2) The period of hire will be reckoned from the commencement of the day of issue upto the end of the day of return (including all recognized holidays) irrespective of the actual hour of issue and return. The contractor will be exempted from levy of any charges for the number of days he is called upon in writing by the Engineer-in-Charge to suspend execution of the work Company's T&P in question has, in fact remained idle with the Contractor because of the suspension, provided the contractor, in case the period of suspension, exceeds eleven days returns Company's T&P to the place from where it was issued.
- 13(3) The hire charges shall be reckoned as under:
 - (a) The first eight working hours(excluding a break of one hour)_____one working day.
 - (b) very working hour or part thereof in excess of eight working hours, at the rate of 1/8th of hire charges for the working days provided however if the company has paid more than at the rate of 1/8th of the wages of the crew for overtime under the Minimum Wages Act or any other law for the time being in force, the Excess of 1/8th of the wages shall also be charged to the Contractor.
- 13(4) If at any time company's T&P has not been worked upon during a day except for a break down, or has been worked for less than 8 hours during a day, the contractor shall be charged for one working day.
- 13(5) If any item of Company's T&P has stopped working on account of breakdown before it is worked for four hours in day the contractor will be charged for half a

- working day. If the item has stopped working after it has worked for more than four hours but less than eight hours, the Contractor will be charged for full working day.
- The hire charges mentioned in conditions 13 to 13.5 above cover charges of crew, stores for maintenance and cleaning purposes and fuel needed to start a machine at the time of issue. All other charges such as cost of fuel for running a machine, engine oil, kerosene oil, etc. for working Company's T&P and all unskilled labour and water required for serving / washout shall be borne by the contractor. The contractor shall permit the Engineer-in-Charge to carry out periodical maintenance for Company's T&P and there will be no deduction in hire charges for the period spent on such maintenance.

However, the contractor shall be allowed to return the tools and plants (issued by the Company) for purposes of repairs and for the duration of such repairs no hire charges shall be levied.

- 13.7. The contractor shall be responsible for care and custody of Company's T&P (including employment of Chowkidars) during the period Company's T&P remain with him and any damage (fair wear and tear excepted) to any of the equipment (except for Excepted Risks provided always the Contractor has taken precautions necessary to protect it from such risks) shall be made good at the Contractors' expense to the satisfaction of the Engineer-in-Charge unless such damage is caused because of negligence of crew provided by the Company.
- 13.8. The company gives no guarantee in respect of output of his T&P hire to the contractor and no reduction in rates or any compensation shall be allowed on the ground that out turn or performance of Company's T&P was not to the Contractors expectations.
- 13.9. Company's T&P hired to the contractor shall be returned at the place of issue (unless otherwise directed) by the contractor to the Engineer-in-Charge on completion of the work or section of the work or earlier on termination of the hire by the Company as herein after provided on a written notice by the Engineer-in-Charge. The company shall be entitled to terminate the hire on two days notice without assigning any reason whatsoever and the contractor shall have no claim to any payment of compensation or otherwise whatsoever on account of termination of hire of Company's T&P by the company. In such an event, however, a reasonable extension of time shall be given by the Engineer-in-Charge.
- 13.10. A Log Book for recording hours during which every item of Company's T&P issued to the Contractor has worked each day shall be maintained by the member of the crew in charge thereof or any representative of the Engineer-in-Charge appointed in that behalf and shall be daily attested by the Contractor or his authorised agent. In case the contractor contests correctness of any entry and or fails to sign the Log Book the decision of the Engineer- in- Charge shall be final and binding on him. Hire charges shall be calculated with the entries in the Log Book.

Materials to be provided by the Contractor

- 14. (a) The contractor shall at his own expense, provide all materials required for the works other than those, which are to be supplied by the Company. For all such materials brought by the Contractor "MATERIAL PASS -IN" should be obtained from our Security Department clearly indicating the description and quantity of materials brought and submit a copy of the "MATERIAL PASS -IN" to the Engineer-in- Charge.
 - 1. All materials to be provided by the Contractor shall be in conformity with the specifications laid in the contract and the contractor shall, if requested by the Engineer-in-Charge, furnish proof to the satisfaction of the Engineer-in-Charge, that the material so comply.
 - 2. The Contractor shall, at his own expense and without delay, supply to the Engineer-in- Charge samples of materials proposed to be used in the works. The Engineer-in-Charge shall within seven days of supply of samples or within such further periods as he may require, intimate the Contractor in writing, whether samples are approved by him or not. If samples are not approved, the Contractor shall forthwith arrange to supply to the Engineer-in- Charge for his approval fresh samples complying with the specifications laid down in the contract.
 - 3. The Engineer-in- Charge shall have full powers to require removal of any or all of the material brought to site by the Contractor which are not in accordance with the contract specifications or do not conform in character or quality to samples approved by him. In case of default on the part of the Contractor in removing the rejected material Engineer-in-Charge shall have full powers to procure other proper materials to substituted for rejected materials and in the event of the Contractor refusing to comply, he may cause the same to be supplied by other means. All cost, which may attend upon such removal and / or substitution, shall be borne by the Contractor.
 - 4. The Contractor shall indemnify the Company or any agent or employee of the Company against any action, claim or proceeding relating to infringement or use of any patent design or any alleged patent or design rights and shall pay any royalties or other charges which may be payable in respect of any article or material or part hereof included in the contract. In the event of any claim being made or action being brought against the Company or any agent servant, or employee of the Company in respect of any such matters as aforesaid, the Contractor shall immediately be notified thereof. Provided that such indemnity shall not apply when such infringement has taken place in complying with the specific directions issued by the Company but the Contractor shall pay any royalties or other charges payable in respect of any such use, the amount, so paid being reimbursed to the Contractor only if the use was the result of any drawings and / or specifications issued after submission of the tender.
 - 5. Subject as hereinafter provided in condition 50/50 -A All charges on account of octroi, terminal or sales tax and other duties on materials obtained for the works

- from any source (excluding materials supplied by the Company) shall be borne by the Contractor.
- 6. The Engineer-in- Charge shall be entitled to have tests carried out as specified in the contract for any materials supplied by the Contractor other than those for which, as stated above, satisfactory proof has already been furnished, at the cost of the Contractor and the Contractor shall provide at his expense all facilities which the Engineer-in-Charge may require for the purpose. If no tests are specified in the contract, and such tests are required by the Engineer-in-Charge the Contractor shall provide all facilities required for the purpose and the charges for these tests shall be borne by the Contractor only if tests disclose that the said material are not in accordance with the provision of the contract. The cost of materials consumed in tests shall be borne by the Contractor in all cases except when otherwise provided.

14. (b) Materials to be supplied by the Company

- 1. If after acceptance of the tender the Contractor desires the Company to supply any other materials, such materials may be supplied by the Company, if available, at rates to be fixed by the Engineer-in-Charge.
- 2. For the materials in which the Company has agreed to supply to the Contractor, he shall give a reasonable notice in writing of his requirements to the Engineer -in-Charge in accordance with the agreed phased programme. Such materials shall be supplied for the purposes of the contract only and the value of materials so supplied shall be set off or deducted as and when the materials are consumed in terms of work for which payment is being made to the Contractor, for any sums then due or which may thereafter become due to the Contractor, under the contract. At the time of submission of bills the Contractor shall properly account for the materials issued to him to the satisfaction of the Engineer-in- Charge and certify that balance of materials supplied is available at site.
- 3. The materials will be issued from the Company's departmental store at Kanjikode. The Contractor shall bear the cost of loading, transporting to site, unloading, storing under cover as required, assembling and joining the several parts together as necessary and incorporation of fixing materials in the works including all preparatory works of whatever descriptions as may be required.
- 4. All materials issued to the Contractor by the Company for incorporation of fixing in the works(including preparatory works) shall, on completion or on foreclosure of the works, be returned by the Contractor at his expense, at the place of issue, after making due allowance for actual consumption, reasonable wear and tear and /or waste.
 - If the Contractor is required to deliver such material at a place other than the place of issue, he shall do so and the transportation charges from the sides to such place, less the transportation charges which would have been incurred by the Contractor

- had such materials been delivered at the place of issue, shall be borne by the Company.
- 5. Surplus material returned by the Contractor shall be credited to him by the Engineer-in- Charge at rates not exceeding these at which were originally issued to him after taking into consideration any deterioration or damage which may have been caused to the said materials whilst in the custody of the Contractor.
- 6. If on completion of works the contractor fails to return surplus material out of those supplied by the Company, then in addition to any other liability which the Contractor would incur, the Engineer-in-Charge may; by a written notice to the Contractor, require him to pay within a for night of receipt of the notice, for such unreturned surplus material at a double the issue rates.
- 7. If cement is to be supplied by the Company, every cement godown shall be provided with two locks on each door. The key of one lock at each door shall remain with the Engineer-in-Charge or his representative and that of the other lock with the Contractor's authorised agent at site of works so that cement is removed from the godown only according to daily requirement with the knowledge of both the parties.

GENERAL

- 15. Materials required for the works whether brought by the Contractor or supplied by the Company, shall be stored by the Contractor only at places approved by the Engineer-in-Charge, storage and safe custody shall be responsibility of the Contractor. Rent will be charged to the Contractor for storage accommodation provided by the Company.
 - 1. Company's official concerned with the contract shall be entitled at any time to instruct and examine any materials intended to be used in or on the works either on the site or at factory workshop or other place(s) where such materials are assembled, fabricated manufactured or at at any places where these are lying or from which these are being obtained and the Contractor give such facilities as may be required for such inspection and examination.
 - 2. All materials brought to the site shall become and remains the property of the Company and shall not be removed off the site without the prior written approval of the Engineer- in- Charge. But whenever the works are finally completed and advance, if any, in respect of any such materials is fully recovered, the Contractor shall at his own expense forthwith from the site all surplus materials originally supplied by him and upon such removal, the same shall revert in and become the property of the Contractor.

LABOUR

16.1 The Contractor shall employ labour in sufficient numbers either directly or through sub-contractor, where such subletting is permitted, to maintain the required rate of progress and of quality to ensure workmanship of the specified in the contract and to the satisfaction of the Engineer-in-Charge. The contractor shall

- not employ in connection with the works any person who has not completed his fifteenth years of age.
- (a) In this connection, the Contractor shall be responsible for the implementation of the Kerala Factory Rules 1957 regarding employment of child/adolescent labour and in default of complaints with any of the provisions of the said Rules he shall indemnify the Company from any damages, penalties, fines, claims, or any other cause of action against the Company on account of any action by the competent government authority or person.
- (b) The Contractor shall not employ any person below the age of 14 years under the law and if any child/adolescent labour who is above the age of 14 years but not completed 15 or completed 15 years but not completed 18 years, a certificate of fitness shall be obtained by the Contractor from the Medical Officer, I.T.I. General Hospital, without which the Contractor shall be liable for action as per the provisions under the law.
- 16.1 The Contractor shall furnish to the Engineer- in- Charge at fortnightly intervals a distribution return of the number and description by trades of the work people employed on the works .The Contractor shall also submit on 4th and 19th of every month to the Engineer- in- Charge a true statement showing in respect of second half of the preceding month and the first half current month. i) the accident that occurred during the said fortnight showing the circumstances under which they happened and the extend of damage and injury caused by them and ii) the number of female workers who have been allowed Maternity benefit as provided in the Maternity Benefit Act ,1961 ,or rules made thereunder and the amount paid to them.
- 16.2 The Contractor shall pay to labour employed by him either directly or through sub-contractor wages not less than fair wages as defined in the Contractor's labour Regulations.
- 16.3 The Contractor shall in respect of labour employed by him either directly or through sub-contractor comply with or cause to be complied with the Contractor's labour regulation regard to all matters provided therein
- 16.4 The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the Payment of Wages Act, 1936, Minimum Wages Act, 1947, Employer's Liability Act, 1938, Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923, Industrial disputes Act, 1947, Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 and Mines Act. 1952 or any modifications thereof or any other law relating thereto and the rules made thereunder from time to time.
 - A) The Contractor shall be liable to pay his contribution and the employees' contribution to the State Insurance Scheme in respect of all labour employed by him for the execution of the contract, in accordance with the provisions of "The Employees' State Insurance Act 1948" as amended from time to time. In case the Contractor fails to submit full details of his account of labour employed and the contribution payable the Engineer- in- Charge shall recover from the running bills of the Contractor an amount of contribution as assessed by him. The amount so recovered shall be adjusted against the actual contribution payable for Employees' State Insurance.

- 16.5 The Engineer- in- Charge shall on report having been made by an Inspecting Officer as defined in the Contractor's Labour Regulations have the power to deduct from the moneys due to the Contractor any sum required or estimated to be required for making good the loss suffered by a worker or workers by reason of non-fulfillment of the conditions of the contract for the benefit of workers, non-payment of wages or deductions made from his or their wages which are not justified by the terms of the contract or non-observance of the said Contractor's Labour Regulations.
- 16.6 The contractor shall indemnify the Company against any payments to be made under and for observance of the Regulations aforesaid without prejudice to his right to claim indemnity from his sub-Contractor.
- 16.7 In the event of the Contractor committing a default or breach of any of the provisions of the a aforesaid Contractor's Labour Regulations as amended from time to time furnishing any information or submitting or filling any Form / Register/ Slip under the provision of these regulations which is materially incorrect then only report of the inspecting officer as defined in the Contractors Labour Regulation, the contractor shall without prejudice to any other liability pay to the company a sum not executing Rs.50.00 as liquidated damages for every default, breach or furnishing, making submitting, filling materially incorrect statement as may be fixed by the Engineer- in-Charge and in the event of the Contractor's default continuing in this respect, the liquidated damages may be enhanced to Rs.50.00 per day for each day of default subject to maximum of one percent of the estimated cost of the works as per tender. The Engineer-in- Charge shall deduct such amount from bills or surety deposit of the Contractor and credit the same to the Welfare Fund constituted under Regulations. The decision of the Engineer- in- Charge in this respect shall be final and binding.

Model Rule For Labour Welfare

16.1.1 The Contractor shall at his own expense comply with or cause to be complied with Model Rule for Labour Welfare as appended to these conditions or rules framed by Government from time to time for the protection of health and for making sanitary arrangements for workers employed directly or indirectly on the works. In case fails to make arrangements as aforesaid, the Engineer- in- Charge shall be entitled to do so and recover the cost thereof from the Contractor.

Safety Code

16.1.2 The contractor shall at his own expense arrange for the safety provisions as appended to these conditions or as required by the Engineer-in-Charge in respect of all labour directly or indirectly employed for performance of the works and

- shall provide all facilities in connection therewith. In case the contractor fails to make arrangements and provide necessary facilities as aforesaid, Engineer- in-Charge shall be entitled to do so and recover the cost thereof from the Contractor.
- (1) Failure to comply with Model Rule for Labour Welfare Society Code or the provisions relating to accidents and to grant of maternity benefits to female workers shall make Contractor liable to pay to the Company as liquidated damages an amount not exceeding Rs.50.00 for each default or materially in correct statement. The decision of the Engineer- in- Charge in such matters based on reports from the Inspecting Officers as defined in the Contractor's Labour Regulation as appended to these conditions shall be final and binding and deductions for recovery of such liquidated damages may be made from any amount payable to the Contractor.

Admission to Site

- 17. The contractor shall not be permitted to enter on (other than for inspection purpose) or take possession of the site until instruction to do so by the Engineer-in- Charge in writing. The portion of site to be occupied by the contractor shall be defined and /or marked on the site plan, failing which these shall be indicated by the Engineer- in Charge at the site and the contractor shall on no account be allowed to extend his operations beyond these areas. In respect of any land allotted to the Contractor for purpose of or in connection with the contract, the Contract shall be a license subject to the following and such other terms and conditions as many be imposed by the licenser:-
 - (i) That he shall pay a nominal license fee of Rs.1/- per year or part of a year for use and occupation, in respect of each and every separate area of land allotted to him.
 - (ii) That such use or occupation shall not confer any right of tenancy of the land to the Contractor.
 - (iii) That the Contractor shall be liable to vacate the land on demand by the Engineer-in-Charge.
 - (iv) That the Contractor shall have no right to any construction over this land without the written permission of the Engineer- in- Charge. In case, he is allowed to construct any structure he shall have to demolish and clear the same before handing over the completed work unless agreed to the contrary.
- 17.1. The Contractor shall provide, if necessary or if required on the site, all temporary access thereto and shall alter, adapt and maintain the same as required from time to time and shall take up and clear them away as and when no longer required and as when ordered by the Engineer- in- Charge and make good all damage done to the site.

Setting out the works

18. The Engineer- in-Charge shall supply dimensional, drawings levels and other information necessary to enable the Contractor to set out the works. The contractors shall provide setting out apparatus required and set out the works and be responsible for the accuracy of the same. He shall amend at his own cost and to

the satisfaction of the Engineer- in-Charge any error found at any stage which may arise through inaccurate setting out unless such error is based on incorrect data furnished in writing by the Engineer-in-Charge, in which case the cost of rectification shall be borne by the Company. The Contractor shall protect and preserve all bench marks used in setting out the works till end of the Defects Liability Period unless the Engineer- in-Charge directs earlier removal.

Site Drainage

19. All water which may accumulate on the site during the progress of the Works, or in trenches and excavations, from other than the excepted risks shall be removed from the site to the satisfaction of the Engineer- in- Charge, and the Contractor's expense.

Nuisance

20. The Contractor shall not at any time do, cause or permit any nuisance on the site or do anything which shall cause unnecessary disturbance or inconvenience to owners tenants or occupiers of other properties near the site and to the public generally.

Materials Obtained from Excavation

21. Materials of any kind obtained from excavation on the site shall remain the property of the company and shall be disposed off as Engineer- in- Charge may direct.

Treasure, Trove, Fossils, etc.

22. All fossils, coins, articles of value or antiquity and structure and other remains or things of geological or archaeological interest discovered on the site shall be the absolute property of the Company and Contractor take reasonable precautions to prevent his workmen or any other person from removing or damaging any, such article or thing and shall immediately upon discovery thereof and before removal acquaint the Engineer- in- Charge's with such discovery and carry out the Engineer- in- Charge's direction as to the disposal of the same at the expense of the Company.

Protection of Trees

23. Trees designated by the Engineer- in- Charge shall be protected from damage during the course of the works and earth level within 1 Metre of each such tree shall not be changed. Where necessary, such trees shall be protected by providing temporary fencing by the Contractor at his own cost.

Watching and Lighting

24. The Contractor shall provide and maintain at his own expense all lights, guards, fencing and watching when and where necessary or required by the Engineer- in-Charge for the protection of the works or for the safety and convenience of those employed on the works or the public.

Contractor's Supervision

25. The Contractor shall either himself supervise the execution of the works or shall appoint a competent agent approved by the Engineer-in- Charge to act on his behalf. If in the opinion of the Engineer-in-Charge the Contractor has himself no sufficient knowledge and experience to be capable or receiving instructions or cannot give his full attention to the works, the Contractor shall at his own expense, employ at his accredited agent an Engineer approved by the Engineer- in- Charge. Orders given to the Contractor's agent shall be considered to have the same force if these had been given to the Contractor himself. If the Contractor fails to appoint a suitable agent as directed by the Engineer- in-Charge, the Engineer-in-Charge shall have full powers to suspend the execution of the works until such date as a suitable agent is appointed and the Contractor shall be held responsible for the delay so caused to the works.

Inspection and Approval

- 26. All works embracing more than one process shall be subject to examination and approval at each stage thereof and the Contractor shall give due notice to the Engineer-in-Charge or his authorised representative when each stage is ready. In default of such notice, the Engineer-in-Charge shall be entitled to appraise the quality and extent thereof.
- 26.1 No work shall be covered up or put out of view without the approval of the Engineer- in-Charge or his authorised representative and the Contractor shall afford full opportunity for examination and measurement of any work which is about to be covered up or put out of view and for examination of foundation before permanent work is placed thereon. The Contractor shall give due notice to the Engineer- in-Charge or his authorised representative whenever any such work or the foundation is ready for examination and the Engineer- in- Charge or his representative shall without unreasonable delay, unless he considers it necessary and advise the Contractor accordingly, attend for the purpose of examining and measuring such work or of examining such foundation. In the event of the failure of the Contractor to give such notice he shall if required by the Engineer- in-Charge uncover such work at the Contractor's expense.

26.2 Company Officers concerned with contract shall have powers at any time to inspect and examine any part of the works and the Contractor shall give such facilities as may be required for such inspection and examination.

Duties and Powers of Engineers-in-Charge's representative

- 27. The duties of the Representative of the Engineer-in-Charge, are to watch and supervise the works and to test and examine any materials to be used or workmanship employed in connection with the works. He shall have no authority to order any work involving any extra payment by the Company or to make any variation in the works.
- 27.1 The Engineer- in-Charge may from time to time delegate to his representative any of the powers authorities vested in the Engineer-in-Charge. Any written instruction or written approval given by the representative of the Engineer-in-Charge to the Contractor within the terms of such delegation shall blind the Contractor and the Company as though it had been given by the Engineer-in-Charge.
- 27.2 Failure of the representative of the Engineer-in-Charge to disapprove any work or materials shall not prejudice the power of the Engineer-in-Charge thereafter to disapprove such work or materials and to order the pulling down, removal or breaking up thereof.
- 27.3 If the Contractor is dissatisfied with any decision of the Representative of the Engineer-in-Charge shall be entitled to refer the matter to the Engineer- in-Charge who shall thereupon confirm, reverse or very such decision.

Removal of Workmen

28. The Contractor shall employ in and about the execution of the works only such person as are skilled and experienced in there several trades and the Engineer-in-Charge shall be at liberty to object to and require the Contractor to remove from the works any person employed by the contractor in or about the execution of the works who in the opinion of the Engineer-in-Charge misconducts himself or is incompetent negligent in the proper performance of his duties and such person shall not be again employed upon the works without permission of the Engineer-in-Charge .

Uncovering and Making Good

29. The Contractor shall uncover any part of the works and/or make opening or through the same as the Engineer-in-Charge may from time to time direct for his verification and shall reinstate and make good such part to the satisfaction of the Engineer-in-Charge. If any such part has been covered up or put out of view after being approved by the Engineer-in-Charge and is subsequently found on uncovering to be executed in accordance with the contract, the expenses of uncovering and making opening in or through, reinstating and making good the

same shall be borne by the Company. In any other case all such expenses shall be borne by the Contractor.

Normal Working hours And Work On Holidays And During Night

30. The Contractor shall carry out all the works during the working hours of the General Shift of the Factory. The Contractor shall not carry out any work on holidays and during night, without prior permission in writing from the Engineer-in-Chief.

31. Completion Certificate

- 31.1 As soon as the work is completed, the Contractor shall give notice of such completion to the Engineer-in-Charge and within ten days of receipt of such notice the Engineer-in-Charge shall inspect the work and shall furnish the Contractor with a certificate of completion indicating (a) the date of completion, (b) defects to be rectified by the Contractor and/or (c) items for which payment shall be made at reduced rates indicating the reasons therefore. When separate periods of completion have been specified for items of group of items, the Engineer-in-Charge shall issue separate completion certificate for such items or group of items. No certificates of completion shall be issued, nor shall the work be considered to be complete till the contractor shall have removed from the premises on which the work has been executed all scaffoldings, sheds and surplus materials, except, such as are required for rectification of defects, rubbish and all huts and sanitary arrangements required for his workmen on the site in connection with the execution of the work, as shall have been erected by the Contractor or the workmen and cleaned all dirt from all parts of buildings(s)in, upon or about which work has been executed or of which he may have had possession for the purpose of the execution thereof and cleaned floors, gutters and drains, eased doors and sashes, oil locks and fastenings, labeled keys clearly and handed them over to the Engineer-in-Charge or his representatives and made the whole premises fit for immediate occupation or use to the satisfaction of the Engineer-in-Charge. If the contractor shall fail to comply with any of the requirements of the this condition as as aforesaid or on before the date of completion of the works, the Engineer- in-Charge may at the expense of the contractor fulfill such requirements and dispose off the scaffoldings, surplus materials and rubbish etc. as he thinks fit and the Contractor shall have no claim in respect of any such scaffolding or surplus materials except for any sum actually realized by the sale thereof less the cost of fulfilling the requirements and any other amount that may be due from the Contractor. If the expenses of fulfilling such requirements are more than the amount realised on such disposal as aforesaid, the Contractor shall forthwith on demand pay such excess.
- 31.2 If at any time before completion of the entire work, items or groups of items for which separate periods of completion have been specified, have been completed and if the Engineer-in-Charge with the consent of the Contractor takes possession of any part or parts of the same (any such part(s) being hereinafter in this

- condition referred to as the relevant part) then notwithstanding anything expressed or implied elsewhere in this Contract.
- (a) Within ten days of the date of completion of such items or group of items or of possession of the relevant part, the Engineer-in-Charge shall issue completion certificate for the relevant part has in condition 31(1) above provided the Contractor fulfills his obligations under that conditions for the relevant part.
- (b) The defects Liability Period in respect of such items and the relevant part shall be deemed to have commenced from the certified date of completion of such items or the relevant part as the case may be.
- (c) The Contractor may reduce the value insured under condition 34 by the value of the completed items or relevant part as estimated by the Engineer in-Charge for this purpose. This estimate shall be applicable for this purpose only and for no other.
- (d) For purposes of ascertaining compensation for delay under condition32 in respect of any period during which the works are not complete the relevant part will be deemed to form a separate item or group, with date of completion as given in the contract or as extended under condition12 and actual date of completion as certified by the Engineer-in-Charge under this condition.

Compensation for Delay

- If the contractor fails to maintain the required progress in terms of condition 12 or to complete the work and clear the site on or before the contract or extended date/period of completion, he shall, without prejudice to any other right or remedy of the Company on account of such breach, to pay as agreed as compensation amount calculated as stipulated below or such smaller amount as may be fixed by the company on the contract value of work for every week that the progress remains below that specified condition 12 or that the work remains incomplete. This will also apply to items or group of items for which separate period of completion has been specified. For this purpose the term 'contract Value' shall be the value at contract rates of the work as ordered.
 - (a) Completion period (as originally stipulated) not exceeding 6 months at 1(one) percent per week.
 - (b) Completion period (as originally stipulated) exceeding 6 months and not exceeding 2 years @ 1 ½ (half) percent per week
 - (c) Completion period (as originally stipulated) exceeding 2 years @ 1/4th (quarter) percent per week.
- 32.1. Provided always that the total amount of compensation for delay to be paid under this condition shall not exceed the under noted percentage of the contract value or of the contract value of the items or group of items of work for which a separate period of completion is given:
 - (a) Completion period as originally stipulated not exceeding 6 months @10%
 - (b) Completion period as originally stipulated exceeding 6 months and not exceeding 2 years @ $7\frac{1}{2}$ %.

- (c) Completion period (as originally stipulated) exceeding 2 years @ 5%.
- 32.2 The amount of compensation may be adjusted or set-off against any sum payable to the Contractor under this or any other contract with the company.

Defects Liability Period

33. The Contractor shall be responsible to make good and remedy at his own expense within such period as may be stipulated by the Engineer-in-Charge, any defect which may develop or may be noticed before the expiry of twelve months from the certified date of completion.

Contractor's Liability and Insurance

- 34. From commencement to completion of the works, the Contractor shall take full responsibility for the care thereof and for taking precautions to prevent loss or damage and to minimise loss or damage to the greatest extent possible and shall be liable for any damage or loss that may happen to the works or any part thereof and all Company's T&P from any cost whatsoever(save and except the Excepted Risks)and shall at his own cost repair and make good the same so that at completion the works and all Company's T&P shall be in good order and condition and in conformity in every respect with the requirements after the Contract and instruction of the Engineer-in-Charge.
- In the event of any loss or damage to the works or any part thereof or to any T&P or to any material or articles at the site from any of the Excepted Risks the following provisions shall have effect:
 - (a) The Contractor shall, as may be directed in writing by the Engineer-in- Charge, remove from the site any debris and so much of the works as shall have been damage, taking to Company's store such Company's T&P, articles and / or materials as may be directed.
 - (b) The Contractor shall as may be directed in writing by the Engineer- in- Charge proceed with the erection and completion of the works under and with the provisions and conditions of the in accordance contract; and
 - (c) These will be added to the Contract sum, the net amount due, ascertained in the same manner as for deviations, or as prescribed for payment, in receipt of the reexecution of the works lost or damage the replacement, of any T&P and of any materials and articles lost or damaged but not incorporated in the works on the day. When the loss/damage occurred and the removal by the Contractor as provided above of Company's T&P articles and /or materials to the Company's store and of debris and damaged works referred to therein and the compensations paid by him, under any law for time being in force to any workman employed by

him for any injury caused to him or the workman's legal successors for loss of the workman's life.

- 34.2 Provided always that the Contractor shall not be entitled to payment under the above provisions in respect of so much loss or damage as has been occasioned by any failure on his part to perform his obligations under the contractor not taking precautions to prevent loss or damage or minimize the amount of such loss or, damage.
- Without limiting the obligations and responsibilities under this conditions the Contractor shall insure the works (from commencement to completion), the Company's T&P hired by the Contractor and all material at site, to their full value as to Company's T&P according to the value indicated by the Engineer-in-Charge against the risk of loss or damage from whatever cause arising other than the Excepted Risks. The said insurance shall be in joint names of the Company and the Contractor and the Contractor shall deposit with the Engineer in Charge the said policy or policies. All money's payable by the insurers under such policy or policies shall be recovered by the Company and shall be paid to the Contractor in installments by the Engineer-in-Charge for the purpose of rebuilding or replacement or repair of the works and /or goods destroyed or damaged as the case may be.
- 34.4 If the Contractor has a blanket insurance policy for all his works and the policy, covers all the items to be insured under this condition the said policy shall be assigned by the Contractor in favour of the Company, provided however is any amount is payable under the policy other than the work under this Contract the same may be recovered by the Contractor directly from the insurers.
- Where the Company building or a part thereof is rendered by the Contractor he shall insure the entire building if the building or any part thereof is used by him for the purpose of storing or using materials of combustible nature, as to which the decision of the Engineer-in-Charge shall be final and binding.
- 34.6 The Contractor shall indemnify and keep indemnified the Company against all losses and claims for injuries or damage to any person or any property whatsoever which may arise out of or in consequence of the construction and maintenance of the works and against all claims, demands, proceedings, damages cost, charges and expenses whatsoever in respect of or in relation thereto; provided always that nothing herein contained shall be deemed to render the Contractor liable for or in respect of or to indemnify the Company against any compensation or damages caused by the excepted risks.

- 34.7 Before commencing execution of the work, the Contractor shall without in any way limiting his obligations and responsibilities under this conditions, insure against any damages / loss or injury which may occur to any property (Excluding that of the Company but including the Company's building rented by the Contractor wholly or in part and any part of which is used by him for storing combustible materials),or to any person (including any employees of the Company) by or arising out of carrying out the Contract.
- 34.8 The Contractor shall at all time indemnify the Company against all claims, damages or compensation under the provisions of payment of Wages Act, 1936, Minimum Wages Act, 1948, Employers Liability Act, 1938, the Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923, Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948, and Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 or any modifications thereof or any other law relating thereto and rules made thereunder from time to time as or consequence of any accidents or injury to any workman or other person in or about the works, whether in the employment of the Contractor or not save and except where such accident or injury has resulted from any act of the Company, its agent or servants, and also against all cost, charges and expenses of any suit, action or proceedings arising out of such accident or injury and against all sum or sums which may with the consent of the Contractor be paid to compromise or compound any such claim. Without limiting his obligations and liabilities as above provided, the Contractor shall insure against all claims, damages or compensations payable under the Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923 or any modification thereof any other law relating thereto.
- 34.9 The aforesaid insurance policy/policies shall provide that they shall not be cancelled till the Engineer-in Charge agreed to their cancellation.
- 34.10 The Contractor shall prove to the Engineer-in Charge from time to time that he has taken out all the insurance policies referred to above and has paid the necessary premium for keeping alive till expiry of the Defects Liability Period.
- 34.11 The Contractor shall ensure that similar insurance policies are taken out by his sub-contractors (if any) and shall be responsible for any claims or losses to the Company resulting from their failure to obtain adequate insurance protection in connection thereof. The Contractor shall produce or caused to be produced by his sub-contractors (if any) as the case may be the relevant policy, or policies and the premium receipts as and when declared by the Engineer-in Charge.
- 34.12 If the Contractor and /or his sub-contractors (if any) shall fail to effect and keep in force their insurance referred to above or any other insurance which he/they may be required to effect under the terms of the contract then and in any such case the Company may without being bound to, effect and keep in force any such insurance and pay such premium or premiums, as may be necessary for that

purpose and from time to time deduct the amount so paid by the Company from any moneys due or which may become due to the Contractor or recover the same as a debt due from the Contractor.

Facilities to other Contractors

35. The Contractor, shall in accordance with the requirements of the Engineer- in-Charge, afford all reasonable facilities to other Contractors engaged contemporaneously on separate contract in connection with the works and for Departmental labour and labour of any other properly authorised authority or statutory body which may be employed at the site on execution of any works not included in the contract or of any contract which the Company may enter into in connection with or ancillary to the works.

Notices to Local Bodies

- 36. The Contractor shall comply with and give all notices required under any Government authority, instrument, rule or order made under any Act of Parliament, state Laws of or any regulations or bye laws of any local authority relating to the works.
 - He shall before making any variation from the contract drawings necessitated by such compliance given to the Engineer-in Charge a written notice giving reasons for the proposed variation and obtain the Engineer-in Charge's instructions thereon.
- 36.1 The Contractor shall pay and indemnify the Company against any liability in respect of any fees or charges payable under any Act of Parliament, State Laws or any Government instrument, rule or order and any regulations or by laws of any local authority in respect of the works.

Sub Contracts

37. The Contractor shall not sublet any portion of the contract without the prior written approval of the Company / Engineer-in Charge.

Instructions and Notices

- 38. Subject as otherwise provided in this contract, all notices to be given on behalf of the Company and all other actions to be taken on its behalf may be given or taken by the Engineer-in Charge or any officer for the time being entrusted with the functions, duties and powers of the Engineer-in Charge.
- All inspections, notices and communications, etc. under the contract shall be given in writing and if sent by registered post to the last known place of abode or business of the Contractor shall be deemed to have been served on the date when in the ordinary course of post these would have been delivered to him.

- 38.2 The contractor or his agent shall be in attendance at the site(s) during all working hours and shall superintend the execution of the works with such additional assistance in each trade as the Engineer-in Charge may consider necessary. Orders given to the Contractor's Agent shall be considered to have the same force as if they had been given to the Contractor himself.
- 38.3 The Engineer– in- Charge shall communicate and or confirm his instructions to the Contractor in respect of the execution of the work in a Work Site Order Book' maintained in the office of the Engineer-in Charge and the Contractor or his authorised representative shall confirm receipt of such instructions by signing the relevant entries in this book If required by the Contractor he shall be furnished a certified true copy of such instruction.

Foreclosure of Contract in full or in part due to Abandonment or Reduction in Scope of work

- If at any time after acceptance of the tender the Company shall decide to abandon or reduce the scope of the works for any reason whatsoever and hence not require the whole of any part of the works to be carried out, the Engineer- in- Charge shall give notice in writing to that effect to the Contractor and the contractor shall have no claim to any payment of compensation or otherwise— whatsoever on account of any profit or, advantage which he might have derived from the execution of the works in full but which he did not derived in consequence of the foreclosure of the whole of part of the works.
- The Contractor shall be paid at contract rates full amount for works executed at site and, in addition reasonable amount as certified by the Engineer-in Charge for the items hereunder mentioned which could not be utilised on the works to the full extent because of the foreclosure.
 - (a) Any expenditure incurred on preliminary site work, eg. Temporary access roads, temporary labour huts, staff quarter and site office, storage accommodation and water storage tanks.
 - (b) i) The Company shall have the option to take over the Contractor's materials of any part thereof either brought to site or of which the Contractor is legally bound to accept the delivery from suppliers (for incorporation in or incidental to the work), provided, however, the Company shall be bound to take over the materials or such portions thereof as the Contractor does not desire to retain; for materials taken over or to be taken over by the Company, cost of such materials. The cost shall however taken into account purchase price, cost of transportation and deterioration or damage which may have been caused to materials whilst in the custody of the Contractor.
 - (ii) For Contractor's materials not retained by the Company, reasonable cost of transporting such materials from site to Contractor's permanent stores or to his

- other works, whichever is less. If materials are not transported to either of the said places, no cost of transportation shall be payable.
- (c) If any materials supplied by the Company are rendered surplus, the same except normal wastage shall be returned by the Contractor to the Company at rates not exceeding those at which these were originally issued less allowance for any deterioration or damage which may have been caused while the materials were in the custody of the / contractor. In addition, cost of transporting such materials from site to the Company stores, if so required by the Company,
- (d) Reasonable compensation for transfer of T&P from site to Contractor's permanent stores or to his other works, whichever is less .If T&P are not transported to either of the said places, no cost of transportation shall be payable.
- 39.2 The Contractor shall, if required by the Engineer-in-Charge, furnish to him books of account, wage books, time sheets and other relevant documents as may be necessary to enable him to certify the reasonable amount payable under this condition.

Termination of Contract for Death

40 If the Contractor is an individual or a proprietary concern and the individual or proprietor dies and if the Contractor is a partnership concern and one of the partners dies then unless the Company is satisfied that the legal representatives of the individual Contractor or of the proprietor of the proprietary concern and in the case of partnership, the surviving partners, are capable of carrying out and completing the Contract the Company shall be entitled to cancel the Contract; as to its incompleted part without the Company being in any way liable to payment of any compensation to the estate of the deceased Contractor and / or the surviving partners of the Contractor's firm on account of the cancellation of the Contract. The decision of the Company that the legal representative of the deceased Contractor or the surviving partners of the contractor's firm cannot carry out and complete the Contract shall be final and binding on the parties in the event of such cancellation the company shall not hold the estate of the deceased Contractor and or the surviving partners of the contractor's firm liable for damages for not completing the Contract.

Cancellation of contract in full or in part

- 41 If the Contractor
 - (a) At any time makes default in proceeding with the works with due diligence and continues to do so after a notice in writing of 7 days from the Engineer-in-Charge, or

- (b) Commits defaults in complying with any of the terms and conditions of the Contract and does not remedy it to take effective steps to remedy it within 7 days after a notice in writing is given to him in that behalf by the Engineer-in-Charge, or
- (c) Fails to complete the works or items of work with individual dates of completion, on or before the date(s) of completion, and does not complete them within the period specified in a notice given in writing in that behalf by the Engineer-in-Charge, or
- (d) Shall offer or give or agree to give to any person in Company's service or to any other person on his behalf any gift of consideration of any kind as an inducement or reward for doing for forbearing to do for having done or forborne to do any act in relation to the obtaining or execution of this or any other contract for the Company, or
- (e) Shall enter into a contract with the Company in connection with which commission has been paid or agreed to be paid by him or to his knowledge, unless the particulars of any such commission and the terms of payment thereof have previously been disclosed in writing to the Engineer-in-Charge; or
- (f) Shall obtain a contract with the company as a result of ring tendering or other nonbonafide methods of competitive tendering; or
- (g) Being an individual, or if a firm or any partner thereof, shall at any time be adjudged insolvent or have a receiving order or order for administration of his estate made against him or shall take any proceedings for liquidation or composition (other than a voluntary liquidation for the purpose of amalgamation or reconstruction) under any insolvency act for time being in force or make any conveyance or assignment of his effects or composition or arrangement for the benefit of his creditors or purport so to do, or if any application be made under any insolvency Act for time being in force for the sequestration of his estate or if a trust deed executed by him for benefit of his creditors; or
- (h) Being a Company shall pass a resolution or the court shall make an order for the liquidation of its affairs, or a receiver or manager on behalf of the debenture holders shall be appointed for circumstances shall arise which entitled the court of debenture, holder to appoint a receiver or manager; or
- (i) Shall suffer an execution being levied on goods and allow it to be continued for a period of 21 days; or
- (j) Assign, transfers, sublets (engagement of labour on a piece-work basis or, of labour with materials not to be incorporated in the work, shall not be deemed to be subletting) or attempts to assign, transfer or sublet the entire works or any portion thereof without the prior written approval of the Engineer-in-Charge; the Engineer-in-Charge may, without prejudice to any other right to remedy which shall have accrued or shall accrue thereafter to the Company, by written notice cancel the Contract as a whole or only such items of work default from the contract.
- 41.5. The Engineer-in-Charge shall on such cancellation have power to:
 - (a) take possession of the site and any materials, constructional plant, implements, stores, etc., thereon; and / or

- (b) carryout the incomplete work by any means at the risk and cost of Contractor
- 41.2. On cancellation of the Contract in full or in part the Engineer-in-Charge shall determine what amount, if any, is recoverable from the Contractor for completion of the works or part of the works or in case the works or part of the works is not to be completed, the loss or damage suffered by the Company. In determining the amount, credit shall be given to the Contractor for the value of the work executed by him up to the time of cancellation, the value of Contractor's materials taken over and incorporated in the work, and use of tackle and machinery belonging to the Contractor.
- 41.3. Any excess expenditure incurred or to be incurred by the Company in completing the works or part of the works/ or the excess loss or damages suffered or may be suffered by the Company as aforesaid after allowing such credit shall be recovered from any moneys due to the Contractor or any account or under any other contract and if such moneys are not sufficient the Contractor shall be called upon in writing to pay the same within 30 days.
- 41.4. If the Contractor shall fail to pay the required sum within the aforesaid period or 30 days the Engineer-in-Charge shall have the right to sell any or all of the Contractor's unused materials, constructional plant, implements, temporary building, etc., and apply the proceeds of sale thereof towards the satisfaction of any sum due from the Contractor under the contract and if there after there be any balance outstanding from the Contractor, it shall be recovered in accordance with the provisions of the contract.
- 41.5. Any sums in excess of the amounts due to the Company and unsold materials, constructional plant, etc., shall be returned to the Contractor, provided always that if cost or anticipated cost of completion by the Company of the works or part of the works is less than the amount which the Contractor would have been paid had he completed the works or part of the works, such benefit shall not accrue to the Contractor.

Liability for Damage Defects or imperfection and Rectification Thereof

42.1 If the Contractor or his workmen or employees shall injure or destroy any part of the building in which they may be working or any building, road, fence, etc., contiguous to the premises on which the work or any part of it is being executed, or if any damage shall happen to the work while the in progress the Contractor shall upon receipt of a notice in writing in that behalf make the same good at his own expense. If it shall appear to the Engineer-in-Charge or his representative at any time during construction or reconstruction or prior to the expiration of the Defects Liability Period, that any work has been executed with unsound, imperfect or unskilled workmanship or that any materials or articles provided by the Contractor for execution of the work are unsound, or of a quality inferior to that Contracted for, or otherwise not in accordance with the contract, or that any defect, shrinkage or other faults have appeared in the work arising out of defective or improper materials or workmanship, the Contractor ,shall upon receipt of a notice in writing in that behalf form the Engineer – in – Charge, forthwith rectify or

remove and reconstruct the work so specified in whole or in part, as the case may require or as the case may be, and / or remove the materials or articles so specified and provide other proper and suitable materials or articles at his own expense, notwithstanding that the same way have been inadvertently, certified and paid for and in the event of his failing to do so within the period to be specified by the Engineer-in-Charge may rectify or remove and re-execute the work and / or remove and replace with others the materials or articles complained of, as the case may be by other means at the risk and expense of the Contractor.

42.1 In case of repairs and maintenance works, splashes and droppings from whitewashing, painting etc. shall be removed and surfaces cleaned simultaneously with completion of these items of work in individual room, quarters or premises, etc. where the work is done without waiting for completion of all other items of work in the contract. In case the Contractor fails to comply with requirements of this condition, the Engineer-in-Charge shall have the right to get the work done by other means at the cost of Contractor. Before taking such action, however the Engineer-in-Charge shall given three days notice in writing to the Contractor.

Urgent Work

43. If any urgent work in respect whereof the decision of the Engineer- in- Charge shall be final and binding necessary and the Contractor is unable or unwilling at once to carry it out, the Engineer-in-Charge may by his own or other work people carry it out as he may consider necessary. If the urgent work shall be such as the Contractor is liable under the contract to carry out at his expense, all expenses incurred on it by the Company shall be recoverable from the Contractor and be adjusted or set off against any sum payable to him.

Changes in Constitution

44. Where the Contractor is a partnership firm, prior approval in writing of the Engineer-in-Charge shall be, obtained before any change is made in the constitutional of the firm. Where the Contractor is an individual or a Hindu Undivided Family business concern such approval as aforesaid shall likewise be obtained before the 'Contractor enters into any partnership firm when only he would have the right to carry out the work hereby undertaken by the Contractor .If prior approval as aforesaid is not obtained the contract shall be deemed to have been assigned in contravention of conditionb41 (j) hereof and the same action may be taken and same consequences shall ensure provided as for in the said condition(41)

Training of Apprentices

45. The Contractor shall during the currency of the contract when called upon the Engineer-in-Charge engage and also ensure engagement by sub contractor and others employed by the Contractor in connection with the works, such number of Apprentices in the categories as mentioned hereunder and for such periods as may be required by the Engineer-in-Charge. The Contractor shall train them as required under the Apprentices Act, 1961 and shall be responsible for all obligations of the employer under the Act including the liability to make payment to apprentices as required under the Act.

Category	Ratio	Plumber			
		Upto	2	Workers	Nil
Brick-Layer	1:7	11	3	11	2
Brick Mason/Buildin	g 1:7	Ш	4	11	3
Construction					
Carpenter1:7		11	11	5	4
Wiremen	1:7	11	6	"	5
Structural Fitter	1:3	11	7	"	6
		11	8	"	7
		11	9	11	8
		11	10	11	8
			and th	pereafter 1.2	

and thereafter 1:2

VALUATION AND PAYMENT

Records and Measurement

- 46. The Engineer-in-Charge shall except as otherwise stated as certain and determine by measurement the value in accordance with the contract of work done in accordance therewith.
- 46.1 All items having a financial value shall be entered in Measurement Book, Level, and Book etc., prescribed by the Company so that a complete record is obtained of all work performed under the contract.
- Measurement shall be taken jointly by the Engineer-in-Charge or his authorised representative and by the Contractor. If the Contractor fails to attend or send an authorised representative for measurement, after such a notice or fails to countersign or to record the objection within a week from the date of measurement then in any such event measurements taken by the Engineer-in-Charge or by the person deputed by him shall be taken to be the correct measurement of the work.
- 46.3 The Contractor shall, without extra charge, provide assistance with every appliances, labour and other things necessary for measurement.
- Measurement shall be signed and dated by both parties each day on the site on completion of measurement. If the contractor objects to any of the measurements, recorded on behalf of the Company a note to that effect shall be made in the

measurement book against the item objected to and such note shall be signed and dated by both parties engaged in taking the measurements.

Methods of Measurement

47. Except where any general or detailed description of the work in quantities expressly shows to the contrary, Schedule of Quantities shall be deemed to have been prepared and measurements shall be taken in accordance with the procedure set forth in the Schedule of Rates / Specification notwithstanding any provision in the relevant Standard Method of Measurement of any general or local custom. In the case of items which are not covered by the Schedule of Rates/Specification, measurement shall be taken in accordance with the relevant Standard Method of Measurement issued by the Bureau of Indian Standards.

Payment on Account

- 48. Interim bills shall be submitted by the Contractor for the work executed. The Engineer-in-Charge shall then arrange to have the bill verified by taking out causing to be taken, where necessary, the requisite measurements of the work.
- 48.1. Payment on account for amount admissible shall be made on the Engineer- in-Charge certifying the sum to which the Contractor is considered entitled by way of interim payment for the following.
 - (a) all work executed after deduction there from the amount already paid, the security deposit and such other amounts as may be deductible or recoverable in terms of the contract.
 - (b) 75 percent of the cost (as assessed by the Engineer-in-Charge) of any materials which are in the opinion of the Engineer-in-Charge reasonably required in accordance with the contract and have been brought to site for incorporation in the works and are safeguards against loss due to any cause whatsoever to the satisfaction of the Engineer-in-Charge but, have not been so incorporated, provided the Contractor provides an insurance cover or the full cost of perishable materials.
- 48.2. The advance payments under (b) above shall be adjusted as and when the materials are utilised in the works
- 48.3. Any interim certificate given relating to work done or materials delivered, may be modified or corrected by any subsequent interim certificate or by final certificate. No certificate of the Engineer-in-Charge supporting an interim payment shall of itself be conclusive evidence that any work or materials to which it relates is/are in accordance with the contract
- 48.4. Pending consideration of extension of date of completion interim payments shall continue to be made as herein provided.

Time Limit for Payment of Final Bill

- 49. The final bill shall be submitted by the Contractor within three months of physical completion of the works. No further claims shall be made by the Contractor after submission of the final bill and these shall be deemed to have been waived and extinguished. Payment of those items of the bill in respect of which there is no dispute and of items in dispute for quantities and rates as approved by Engineer-in-Charge, shall be made within the period specified here under, the period being reckoned from the date of receipt of the bill by the Engineer-in-Charge
 - (a) Contract amount not exceeding Rs.5.Lakhs 4Months
 - (b) Contract amount exceeding Rs.5.Lakhs 6Months
- 49.1. After payment of the amount of the final bill payable aforesaid has been made, the Contractor may, if he so desire reconsider his position in respect of the disputed portion of the final bill and if he fails to do so within 90 days, his disputed claim shall be dealt with as provided in the contract.

LOANS

- 51. Loans will, subject to availability of funds and, if required by the Contractor, be given as under within 6 weeks of submission of application by him subject to other conditions being fulfilled and the Engineer-in-Charge certifying the sum to which the Contractor is entitled by way of loan:

 In case of contracts valued at over Rs.20 Lakhs
- (a) For plant and equipment specifically acquired for the work and brought to site ,at 75% of the purchase price of new machinery, against production of documents in support thereof and subject to the condition that the Engineer-in-Charge considers the price reasonable and that such plant and equipment are necessary for the works and not in excess of requirements and are hypothecated in favour of the company in the form required by the Company. Interest on the sum outstanding shall be levied at the appropriate percentage determined by the Engineer-in-Charge. Loan against the plant and equipment shall in no case exceed six percent of the contract sum.
- (b) A lumpsum advance not exceeding 4% of the contract sum against guarantee acceptable to the Company at the appropriate rate of interest determined by the Engineer-in-Charge. The advance shall be utilised for the purpose of this contract only and for the no other purpose. Provided that if a request for loan is made by the Contractor against both the aforementioned provision this condition, viz. (a)&(b) the total sum given as loan shall not exceed 8% of the contract sum.
- 51.1 Recovery of the sums loaned against (a) and (b) above and of interest thereon shall be made by deduction from the on account payments referred to in condition 48 in suitable percentages in relation to the progress, as fixed by the Engineer-in-Charge, so that all the sums loaned with interest thereon shall be fully recovered by the time work amounting to nearly 80% of the contract sum is completed. If the amount payable under any interim bill is not sufficient to cover all deductions to

- be made for sums loaned and other sums deductible therefrom, the balance outstanding shall be deducted from subsequent interim bill/bills as may be necessary, failing that as otherwise provided for in the contract.
- 51.2 If for any reason, except a default of the Contractor, the work under the contract is suspended or is to be suspended for more than 15 days, he Contractor shall be at liberty to remove the plant and equipment or any part thereof hypothecated to the Company under clause (a) above to any works site of the Contractor for carrying on his other works, n his furnishing prior to such removal Bank guarantee acceptable to the Company for the amount of the outstanding loan granted under clause(a) above with interest and undertaking to bring back to the site, before expiry of the period of suspension ,the plant and equipment as may be necessary for completion of the works. If such plant and equipment are not brought back, the Contractor shall forthwith repay the amount of the loan outstanding with interest.

Over payments and Underpayments

- Whenever any claim for the payment of a sum of money to the Company arises out of /under this contract against the Contractor the same may be deducted by the Company from any sum then due or which at any time thereafter may become due to the Contractor under this contract failing that under any other contract with the Company or from any other sum due to the Contractor from the Company (which may be available with the Company) or from his security deposit, or shall pay the claim on demand.
- 53.1 The Company reserves the right to carry out post payment audit and technical Examination of the final bill including all supporting vouchers, abstracts etc. The Company further reserves the right to enforce recovery of any overpayment deducted, notwithstanding the fact that the amount of the final bill may be included by one of the parties as an item of dispute before an arbitrator appointed under condition 54 of this contract and notwithstanding the fact that the amount of the final bill figures in the arbitration award.
- If as result of such audit and technical examination any overpayment is discovered in respect of any work done by the Contractor or alleged to have been done by him under the contract, it shall be recovered by the Company from the Contractor, by any or all of the methods prescribed above or if any underpayment is discovered the amount shall be duly paid to the Contractor by the Company.
- Provided that the aforesaid right of the Company to adjust over payments against amount due to the Contractor under any other contract with the Company shall not extend beyond the period of two years from the date of payment of the final bill or in case of the final bill is a MINUS bill, from the date amount payable by the Contractor under the MINUS final bill is communicated to the Contractor.
- Any amount due to the Contractor under this contract for underpayment may be adjusted against any amount then due or which may at any time thereafter become

due before payment is made to the contractor from him to the Company on any other contract or account whatsoever.

Arbitration and Laws

54. Except where otherwise provided in the contract all question and dispute relating to the meaning of the specifications, designs, drawings and instructions herein before mentioned and as the quality of workmanship, or materials used on the work, or as to any other question, claim, right matter or thing whatsoever, in any other way arising out of or relating to the contract, designs, drawings, specifications, estimates, instructions, orders or these conditions or otherwise concerning the works or the execution or failure to execute the same, whether arising during progress of the work or after the completion or abandonment thereof shall be referred to the sole arbitration of the person appointed by the Head of the Unit. It will be no objection to any such appointment that the arbitrator appointed is a Government Servant / Public Sector employees and that he had to deal with the matters to which this contract agreement relate and that in the course of his duties as such Government Servant / Public Sector employee he had expressed views on all or any of the matters in dispute of difference. The arbitrator to whom the matter is originally referred being transferred or vacating his office or being unable to act for any reason, the head of the Unit as aforesaid at the time of such transfer,

Vacation action of office or inability to act, shall appoint another person to act as arbitrator in accordance with the terms of the contract, such person shall be entitled to proceed with the reference from the stage at which it was left by his predecessor. It is also a term of the contract that no person other than a person appointed by such head of the unit aforesaid should act as arbitrator and if for any reason that is not possible the matter is not to be referred to arbitration at all. The arbitrator shall give reasons for the award. The award of the arbitrator so appointed shall be final, conclusive and binding on all parties to this contract. Subject as aforesaid the provisions of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996,or any statutory modification or enactment thereof and the rules made thereunder and for the time being in force shall apply to the arbitration proceeding under this clause .It is also a term of the contract that the party invoking arbitration shall specify the disputes together with the amount or amounts claimed in respect of each such dispute.

It is also the term of the contract that if the Contractor(s)do/does not make any demand for arbitration in respect of any claim(s) in writing within 90 days receiving the intimation from the department that the bill is ready for payment, the claim of the Contractor(s)will be deemed to have been waived and absolutely barred and the Company shall be discharged and released of all liabilities under the contract in respect of those claims.

The entire cost of arbitration including fees to arbitrator, secretarial charges, cost of stamp paper and any other charges shall be shared equally between ITI and the Contractor.

Laws Governing the Contract

55. The Indian Laws shall govern this contract for time being in force.

Water and Electricity

- Water and electricity required for the work will be provided available at ground level at free cost. The contractor has to make his own arrangement for temporary wiring etc. at his cost.
- 2. The contractor shall make his own arrangement for water connections and laying pipelines from exiting main source of supply. It should be clearly understand that the Engineer-in-Charge does not guarantee to maintain uninterrupted water supply and it will be incumbent on the Contractor to make alternative arrangement for water at his own cost in the event of any temporary breakdown in the I.T.I Factory water supply, o that progress of his work is not held up for want of water. No claim of damages or refund of water charges will be entertained on account of such breakdown.
- 57. Sales Tax and /or any other duty or tax including the additional duty or tax by the State legislature or Parliament on the building construction (work contract) shall be and always borne by the Contractor.
- 58. Delhi Schedule of rates, analysis of rates, and CPWD specifications will also form the part of the contract.

Price Escalation

59. If the price of materials (not being materials supplied or services rendered fixed prices by the department) and /or wages or labour required for execution of the work increases the contractor shall be compensated for such increase as per BPE and CPWD norms from time to time.

Clause59 above will be applicable only for those works for which the stipulated period of completion is more than 18 months.

Provided that if the increase in price of materials and / or wages or labour aforesaid, in the opinion of the Engineer-in-Charge is attributable to delay in the execution of the contract on account of the default on the part of the contractor the company shall not be liable to make good nor the contractor shall be entitled to claim the increase in price and / or wages or labour aforesaid.

Provided further that in each case where the contractor claims payment under this clause, the Engineer-in- Charge shall record his decision whether increase in price of materials, labour or wages is attributable to delay on account of the default on the part of the contractor during the period beyond the time as per the agreement or extended time as approved. The decision of the Engineer- in- Charge shall be final and binding on the parties to the contract.

Provided further that the company shall be entitled to the benefit of reduction in price of materials.

CONTRACTORS LABOUR REGULATIONS

(See Condition 16)

Definition

- 1. In these regulations, unless otherwise expressed or included, he following words and expression have the meaning hereby assigned to them.
 - (a) "Labour" means workers employed by a Contractor directly or indirectly through a sub-contractor, or by an agent on his behalf on a payment not exceeding Rs.500/-per month
 - (b) "Fair Wage" means wages which shall include wages for weekly day of rest and other allowances, whether for time or piece-work, after taking into consideration prevailing market rates for similar employments in the neighborhood but shall not be less than the minimum rates of wages fixed under the Minimum Wages Act.
 - (c) "Contractor" for the purpose of these regulations shall include an agent or sub-Contractor employing labour on the work taken on contract
 - (d) "Inspecting Officer' means any Labour Enforcement Officer or Assistant Labour Commissioner of the Chief Labour Commissioner's Organization.
 - (e) "Form" means a form appended to these Regulations.

Notice of Commencements

- (i) The contractor shall, within SEVEN days of commencement of the work, furnish in writing to the Inspecting Officer of the areas concerned the following information.
 - (a) Name and situation of the work
 - (b) Contractor's Name and Address.
 - (c) Particulars of the Department for which the work is undertaken.
 - (d) Name and address of sub-contractor's as and when they are appointed.
 - (e) Commencement and probable duration of the work.
 - (f) Number of workers employed and likely to be employed.
 - (g) "Fair Wages" or different categories of workers

3. (i) Number of Hours of Work which shall constitute a Normal Working Day

The numbers of hours, which shall constitute a normal working day for an adult, shall be NINE hours. The working day of an adult worker shall be so arranged that inclusive of intervals, if any, for rest it shall not spread over more than twelve hours on any day. When an adult worker is made to work for more than NINE hours on any day for more than FORTY EIGHT hours in any week, he shall in respect of overtime work, be paid wages at double the ordinary rate of wages.

(ii) Weekly Day of rest:

Every worker shall be given a weekly day of rest, which shall be fixed and noticed at least TEN days in advance. A worker shall not be required or allowed to work weekly rest day unless he has or will have a substituted rest day, on one of the five days immediately before or after the rest day. Provided that no substitution shall be made which will result in the worker working for more than 10 days consecutively without a rest day for a whole day.

Where is accordance with the foregoing provisions a worker works on the rest day has been given a substituted rest day he shall be paid wages for the work done on the weekly rest day at the overtime rate of wages.

Note

The expression ordinary rate of wages means the fair wage the worker is entitled to:

4. Display of Notice Regarding Wages, Weekly Day of Rest, etc.

The Contractor shall before he commences his work on contract, display and correctly and maintain in a clean and legible condition in conspicuous places on the works, notices in English and in the local Indian Language, spoken by majority of workers, giving the rate of fair wages, the hours of work for which such wages are payable, the weekly rest days workers are entitled to and name and address of the Inspecting Officer .The contractor shall send a copy each such notice to the Inspecting Officers.

5. Fixation of Wage Periods

The Contractor shall fix the wage periods in respect of which wages shall be Payable. No wage period shall normally exceed one week.

6. Payment of wages

- (i). Wages due to every worker shall be paid to him direct. All wages shall be Paid in current coins or currency or in both.
- (ii). Wages of every worker employed on the contract shall be paid where the wage period is one week, within THREE days from the end of the wage period and in any other case before the expiry of the 7th day or 10th day from the end of the wage period according as the number of workers does not exceed 1,000 or exceeds 1,000.
- (iii). When employment of any worker is terminated by or on behalf of the Contractor, the wages earned by him shall be paid before expiry of the day succeeding the one in which his employment is terminated.
- (iv). Payment of wages shall be made at the work site on working day except when the work is completed before expiry of the wage period, in which case final payment

shall be made at the work site within 48 hours of the last working day and during normal working time.

Note

The term "Working Day" means a day on which the work on which labour is employed, is in progress

7. Register of Workmen

A Register of Workmen shall be maintained in the Form appended to these regulations and kept at the work site or as near to it as possible, and the relevant particulars of every workmen shall be entered therein within THREE days of his employment.

8. Employment Card

The contractor shall issue an employment card in the form appended, to these regulations to each worker on the day of work or entry into his employment If worker has already any such card with him issued by the previous employer, the Contractor shall merely endorse that Employment Card with relevant entries. On termination of employment, the Employment Card shall again be endorsed by the Contractor and returned to the worker.

9. Register of Wages etc.

- (i) Register of Wages-cum-Muster Roll in the Form appended to these regulations shall be maintained and kept at the work site or as near to it as possible.
- (ii) A wage slip in the form appended to these regulations shall be issued to every worker, employed by the Contractor at least a day prior to disbursement of wages.

10. Fine and Deductions which may be made from Wages

- (i) Wages of a worker shall be paid to him without any deductions of any kind except the following:-
 - (a) Fines
 - (b) deductions for absence from duty, i.e. from the place or the places where by the terms of his employment he is required to work. The amount of deduction shall be proportion to the period for which he was absent.
 - (c) Deductions for damage to or loss of goods expressly entrusted to the employed person for custody, or for loss of money which he is required to account for where such damage or loss is directly attributable to his neglect or default.
 - (d) Deductions for recovery of advance or for adjustment of over payment of wages Advance granted shall be entered in register; and

- (e) any other deduction which the Company may from time to time allow.
- (ii) No fines shall be imposed on any worker save in respect of such acts and omissions on his part as have been approved by the Chief Labour commissioner.
- (iii) No fines shall be imposed on a worker and no deductions for damage or loss shall be made from his wages until the worker has been given an opportunity of showing cause against such fines or deductions.
- (iv) (The total amount of fines which may be imposed in any one wage period on a worker shall not exceed an amount equal to three paise in a rupee of the wages payable to him in respect of that wage period.
- (v) No fines imposed on a worker shall be recovered from him in installments, or after expiry of sixty days from the date on which it was imposed. Every fine shall be deemed to have been imposed on the day of the act of omission in respect of which it was imposed.
- (vi) The Contractor, shall maintain both in English and the local Indian Language a list, approved by the Chief Labour Commissioner, clearly stating the acts and commissions for which penalty or fine may be imposed on a workmen and display it in good condition in a conspicuous place on the work site.
- (vii) The Contractor shall maintain a register of fines and the register of deductions for damage or loss in the Forms appended to these regulations, which should be kept at the place of work.

11. Register of Accidents

The Contractor shall maintain a register of accidents in such form as may be convenient at the work place but the same shall include the following particulars:-

- (a) Full particulars of the labour who met with accidents.
- (b) Rate of wages.
- (c) Sex
- (d) Age
- (e) Nature of accident and cause of accidents.
- (f) Time and date of accident
- (g) Date and time when admitted in hospital
- (h) Date of discharge from the hospital
- (i) Period of treatment and result of treatment.
- (j) Percentage of loss of earning capacity and disability as assessed by medical officers.
- (k) Claim required to be paid under Workmen Compensation Act.
- (l) Date of payment of Compensation.
- (m) Amount paid with details of the person to whom the same was paid.
- (n) Authority by whom the compensation was assessed.
- (o) Remarks.

12. Preservation of Registers

The Register of Workmen and the register of Wages-cum-Muster Roll required to be maintained under these regulations shall be preserved for 3 years after the date on which the last entry is made therein.

13. Enforcement

The Inspecting Officer shall either on his own motion or on a complaint received by him carry out investigations, and send a report to the Engineer-in-Charge specifying the amounts representing workers dues and amount of penalty to be imposed on the Contractor for breach of these regulations, that have to be recovered from the Contractor indicating full details of the recoveries proposed and the reasons therefore .It shall be obligatory on the part of the Engineer-in-Charge on receipts of such a report to deduct such amounts from payments due to the Contractor .

14. Disposal of Amounts Recovered from the Contractor

The Engineer-in-Charge shall arrange payment to workers concerned within FORTY-FIVE days from receipt of a report from the Inspecting officer except in cases where the Contractor had made an appeal under Regulation 16 of these Regulations in cases where there is an appeal, payment of workers dues would arranged by the Engineer-in-Charge, wherever such payment arise, within THIRTY days from the date of receipt of the decision of the Regional Labour Commissioner (R.L.C)

15. Welfare Fund

All money that are recovered -by the Engineer-in-Charge by way of worker's dues which could not be disbursed to workers within the time limit prescribed above, due to reasons such as whereabouts of workers not being known, death of a worker, etc. and also amounts recovered as penalty, shall be credited to a Fund to be kept under the custody of the company for such benefit and welfare of workmen employed by contractors.

16. Appeal Against Decision of Inspecting Officer

Any person aggrieved by a decision of the Inspecting Officer may appeal against such decision to Regional Labour Commissioner concerned within THIRTY days from the date of the decision, forwarding simultaneously a copy of his appeal to the Engineer-in-Charge. The decision of the Regional Labour Commissioner shall be final and binding upon the Contractor and the workmen.

Representation of Parties

- (i) A workmen shall be entitled to be represented in any investigation or enquiry under these Regulation by an officer of a registered trade union of which he is a member or by an officer of a Federation of trade unions to which the said trade is affiliated or where the workman is not a member of any registered trade union, by an officer of a registered trade union, connected with, or by any other workman employed in the industry in which the worker is employed.
- (ii) A Contractor shall be entitled to be represented in any investigation or enquiry under these Regulations by an officer of an association of Contractors of which he is a member or by **an** officer of Federations of Associations of Contractors to which the said Association is affiliated or where the contractor is not a member of any Association of Contractors, by an officer of Association of Employers, connected with, or by any employer engaged in the industry in which the contractor engaged.
- (iii) No party shall be entitled to be represented by a legal practitioner in any investigation or enquiry under these regulations.

18. Inspection of books and other Documents

The contractor shall allow inspection of the Registers and other documents prescribed under these Regulations by Inspecting Officers and the Engineer-in-Charge or his authorised representative at any time and by worker or his agent on receipt of due notice at a convenient time.

19 Interpretations etc.

On any question as to the application, interpretation or effect of these Regulations, the decision of the Chief Labour Commissioner or Deputy Chief Commissioner (Central) shall be final and binding.

20. Amendments

Central Government may, from time to time, add to or amend these Regulations and issue such directions, as it may consider necessary for the proper implementation of these Regulations or for the purpose of removing any difficulty, which may arise in the administration thereof

21 Contract Labour (Abolition & Regulation) Act, 1972

All obligations arising under this Contract consequent on the passing of the Contract Labour(Abolition & Regulation)Act,1972 shall be fulfilled by the Contractor and the company shall have the right to the indemnified by the Contractor in case of any claim, loss, cause of action, by any third party on account of the said Act to this Contract.

Register of Workmen

(Regulation-7)

(THESE ARE ONLY SPECIMEN SEPARATE FORMS TO BE USED FOR ACTUAL USE)

(1)	1) Name and address of the Contractor :							
(ii)	(ii) Number and date of the contract :							
(iii)	Name and ad	dress of the	e Departme	ent				
` ,	awarding the		1	:				
(iv)	Nature of the		d location	of				
()	the work							
(v)	Duration of the	contract		•				
(·)	2 6.2 6.2 6.2 6.2 6.2 6.2 6.2 6.2 6.2 6.			·				
Sl.	Name and S	urname	Age &	Father's/	Nature of			
No.	of the Wo	rkers	Sex	Husband's	employment			
				Name	Designation			
1	2		0	4	-			
1	2		3	4	5			
	nent /Home	Present	Date of Comme-		Date of Termination			
addres	s of Employee	Address	ncement of		or leaving of			
(Villag	e.,Dist,Thana)		Employment		employment			
6		7	8		9			
Signati	ure of thumb im	pression	Remarks					
0	employee	1						
10				11				
10								

Signature of Contractor

Employment Card (Regulation-8)

(THESE ARE ONLY SPECIMEN SEPARATE FORMS TO BE USED FOR ACTUAL USE)

(ii) Father's (iii) Address (iv) Identific (v) Particular next of k Name:	ation Mark s of the next of in in case the w	ame : :	fe/husband	,
No. Employer(sp	Address of the pecify whether a r a Sub-Contract	Particulars of Worksite and or) of workd	d description	Total period for which the worker is employed From
1	2	3		4
Actual number of worked Leave taken	(No of days of should be specified)	Nature of work done by the Worker	wage period	wage Rate (with parti culars of unit in case of piecework)
5	6	7	8	9
Total wage earr worker during t shown under C	the period	Remark		Signature of the employer
10		11		12

Signature of Contractor

Register of wages-cum-Muster Roll Regulation-9

(i)	Name and address o	f the Contrac	ctor :_				
(ii) N	o. & Date of the cont	ract	:				
` /	Name and address Id					_	
` /	ature of the contract						
, ,			oll of work				
` /	uration of the contra	Ct	<u>:</u>				
(V1) W	age period		:				
Sl.	Name and Surname	Father	's/Husban	ıd's Sex	Designa	ation/	
No.	Designation /	Name			Nature of		
	of the worker work				work		
1	2	3		4	5		
Daily at	tendance	Total		FAIR WAC	GES PAYABLE		
No.of u	ınits worked	Attendance		D.A. & other			
1,2,3,4,5	31)	Units Basic		sic allo	ic allowances		
6		7		8	9		
WAGES		OVE	RTIME WO		Tota	1	
	D.A, & other		No.of	Overtime	wage		
Basic	allowances	Dates	hours	wages	pai	d ———	
10	11	12	13	14	15		

Deduction from wages

*Fine	*Deduction for Damage or loss	House Rent	Recovery of advances	Other deduction	Net wages payable	
16	17	18	19	20	21	

Date of payment	Signature of thumb impression of worker	Remarks
22	23	24

Reasons to be recorded in Column 24.

Signature of Contractor

Register of Fines

(Regulation No.-10-VII)

Sl. No.	Name	Father's/Husband's Name	Sex	Department	Nature and date of the offence for
which			4		fine imposed
1	2	3	4	5	6

whether workmen showed cause against fine or not if so, enter date	Rate of wages	Date and amount of fine imposed	Date on which fine realised	Remarks
7	8	9	10	11

Register of Deduction for Damages or Loss caused to the company by the Neglect or Default of the Employed persons

(Regulation No. 10-VII)

Sl. No.	Name	Fathe Naı	er's/Husband's me	-		amage or lo aused with		
1	2	3		4	5		6	-
	workmen sl gainst deduc er date		Date & amount of deduction imposed	No. o inst if an	alment	Date on which total amount realised		rks

Signature of Contractor

10

Wage Slip Regulation-9

(i)	Name of Contractor :			
(ii)	Place :			
1.	Name of the worker with Father's/Husband 's Name.			
2.	Nature of Employment.			
3.	Wage Period.			
4.	Rate of Wages Payable			
5.	Total attendance / Unit of work done			
6.	Date on which overtime worked			
7.	Overtime Wages			
8.	Gross Wages Payable			
9.	Total deduction(indicating nature of deductions)			
10.	Net Wages Payable.			
	or's Signature/ Employee's Signature Thumb Impression			

Signature of Contractor

MODEL RULES FOR LABOUR WELFARE: (SEE CONDITION 16)

1. Definitions

- (a) "Workplace" means a place at which, on an average, twenty or more workers are employed.
- (b) 'Large workplace' means a place at which, on an average, 500 or more workers are employed.

2. First Aid

At every workplace, there shall be maintained in a readily accessible place first – aid appliance including an adequate supply of sterilized dressings and sterilized cotton wool as prescribed in the Factory rules of the State in which the work is carried on. The appliance shall be kept in good order and in large workplace; they shall be placed under the charge of a responsible person who shall be readily available during working hours.

At large workplace, where hospital facilities are not available within easy distance of the works, First aid shall be established and be run by trained compounder. Where large workplace is remotely situated and far away from regular hospital, an indoor ward shall be provided with one bed for every 250 employees. Where large workplace are situated in cities, towns or in their suburbs and no beds are considered necessary owing to proximity of city or town hospitals, suitable transport, shall be provided to facilitate removal or urgent cases to these hospitals. At other workplace, some conveyance facilities shall be kept readily available to take injured person or persons suddenly taken seriously ill, to the nearest hospital. At large workplace there shall be provided and maintained an ambulance room of the prescribed sizes, containing the prescribed equipment and in the charge of such medical and nursing staff as may be prescribed. For this purpose the relevant provision of the Factory Rules of the State Government of area where the work is carried on may be taken as the prescribed standard.

3. Accommodation for Labour

The Contractor shall during the progress of the works provide, erect and maintain necessary temporary living accommodation and ancillary facilities for labour at his own expense and to standards and scales as approved by the Engineer-in-Charge.

4. Drinking Water

In every workplace, there shall be provided and maintained at suitable places, easily accessible to labour, a sufficient supply of cold water fit for drinking. Where drinking water is obtained from an intermittent public water supply each work place shall be provided with storage where drinking water shall be stored. Every water supply storage shall be at a distance of not less than 15m from any latrine drain or other source of pollution. Where water has to drawn from an existing

well, which is within such proximity of latrine, drain or any other source of pollution, the well shall be properly chlorinated before water is drawn from it for drinking. All such well shall be entirely closed in and be provided with a trap door, which shall be dust and waterproof. A reliable pump shall be fitter to each covered well, the trap door shall be kept locked and opened only for cleaning or inspecting which shall be done at least once a month.

5. Washing and Bathing Places

Adequate washing and bathing places shall be provided separately for men and women such places shall be kept in clean and drained condition.

6. Scale of Accommodation in Latrine and Urinals

There shall be provide within the precincts of every workplace latrines and urinals in an accessible place, and the accommodation, separately for each of these, shall not be less than at the following scales:-

		No of Seats
a)	Where number of persons does not exceed 50	2
b)	Where number of persons exceeds 50 but does not exceeds 100	3
c)	For additional persons	3 per 100 or
		part thereof

In particular cases, the Engineer-in-Charge shall have the power to vary the scale, where necessary

7. Latrine and Urinals

Except in workplace provided with water-flushed latrines connected with a water borne sewage system, all latrine shall be provided with receptacles on dry earth system which shall be cleaned at least four times daily and at least twice during working hours and kept in strictly sanitary conditions. Receptacles shall be tarred inside and outside at least once a year if women are employed, separate latrines and urinals, screened from those for men and marked in the vernacular in conspicuous letters "For Women Only" shall be provided on the scale laid down in Rule-6. Those for men shall be similarly marked "For Men Only" A poster showing the figure of a man and of a women shall also be exhibited at the entrance to latrines for each sex, there shall be adequate supply of water closet to latrines and urinals.

8. Construction of Latrines

Inside walls shall be constructed of masonry or other non-absorbent materials and shall be washed inside and outside at least once a year. The dates of Cement washing shall be noted in a register maintained for the purpose and kept available for inspection. Latrines shall have at least thatched roof.

9. Disposal of Excreta

Unless otherwise arranged for by the local sanitary authority, arrangement for proper disposal of excreta by incineration at the workplace shall be made by means of a suitable incinerator approved by the local, medical, health And Municipal or cantonment authorities alternately excreta may be disposed off by putting a layer of night soil at the bottom of pucca tank prepared for the purpose and covering it with a 15cm. layer of waste or refuse and then covering it with a layer of earth for a fortnight (when it will turn into manure)

The Contractor shall at his own expense, carry out all instruction issued to him by the Engineer-in-Charge to effect proper disposal of soil and other conservancy work in respect of Contractor's work people or employees on the site. The Contractor shall be responsible for payment of any charges, which may be levied by municipal or cantonment authority for execution of such work on his behalf.

10. Provision or Shelters During Rest

At every workplace there shall be provided, free of cost, four suitable sheds, two for meals and two others for rest, separately for use of men and women labour. Height of each shelter shall not be less than 3 metres from floor- level to lowest part of roof. Sheds shall be kept clean and the space provided shall be on the basis of at least 0.5sq.m. Per head.

11. Creches

At place at which 20 or more women workers are ordinarily employed, there shall be provided at least one hut for use of children under the age of 6 years, of such women. Huts shall not be constructed to a standard lower that of thatched roof; mud floor and walls with wooden planks spread over mud floor and covered with matting. Huts shall be provided with suitable and sufficient opening, for light and ventilation. There shall be adequate provisions of sweepers to keep the places clean. There shall be two 'dias' in attendance. Sanitary utensils shall be provided to the satisfaction of local medical, health and municipal or cantonment authorities. Use of huts shall be restricted to children, their attendants and mothers of children. Where the number of moment workers is more than 25 but less than 50, the Contractor shall provide at least one hut and one Dai to look after children-of

women workers. Size of Creche(s) shall vary according to the number of women workers employed. Creche(s) shall be properly maintained and necessary equipment like toy, etc., provided.

12. Canteen

A cooked food canteen on a moderate scale shall be provided for the benefit of workers wherever it is considered necessary.

13. Planning, sitting and erection of the above mentioned structures shall be approved by the Engineer-in-Charge, and the whole of such temporary accommodation shall at all times during the progress of the works be kept tidy and in a clean and sanitary condition to the satisfaction of the Engineer-in-Charge and at the Contractor's expense. The contractor shall confirm generally to sanitary requirements of local medical, health and municipal or cantonment authorities and at all times adopt such precautions as may be necessary to prevent soil pollution, of the site. On completion of the works the whole of such temporary structures shall be cleared away, all rubbish burnt, excreta or other disposal pits or trenches filled in an effectively sealed off and the whole of site left clean and tidy to entire satisfaction of the Engineer-in-Charge and at the Contractor's expense.

14. Anti - Malarial Precautions

The contractor shall at his own expense, confirm to all anti-malarial instructions given to him by the Engineer-in-Charge, including filling up of any borrow pits which may have been dug by him.

15. Enforcement

The Inspecting Officer mentioned in the Contractor's Labour Regulations / or any other Officer nominated in this behalf by the Engineer-in-Charge shall report to the Engineer-in-Charge all cause of failure to comply with the provisions of these Rules either wholly or in part and the Engineer-in-Charge shall impose such fines and other penalties as are prescribed in the conditions.

16. Interpretations etc.

On any question as to the application, interpretation or effect of these Rules the decision of the Chief labour Commissioner or Deputy Chief labour Commissioner Central shall be final and binding.

17. Amendments

Government may, from time to time, add to or amend these Rules and issue such direction as it may consider necessary for the proper implementation of these Rules or for the purpose of removing any difficulty, which may arise for administration thereof.

Safety Code (See Condition 16)

- 1. Suitable scaffolds shall be provided for workmen for all work that cannot safely be done from the ground or from solid construction except such short period work as can be done safely from ladders. When a ladder is used an extra mazdoor shall be engaged for holding the ladder and if the ladder is used for carrying materials as well, suitable footholds and handhold's shall be provided on the ladder and the ladder shall be given an inclination not steeper than 1/4 horizontal and 1 vertical.
- 2. Scaffolding or staging more than 3.25 meters above the ground or floor, swung or suspend from an overhead support or erected with stationary support shall have a guard rail properly attached, bolted, braced and otherwise secured at least 1 meter high above the floor or platform or such scaffolding or staging and extending along the entire length of the outside and ends thereof with only such opening as may be necessary for the delivery of materials such scaffolding or staging shall be so fastened to prevent it from swaying from the building or structure.
- 3. Working platform, gangways and stairways shall be so constructed that they do not sag unduly or unequally, and if height of platform or gangway or stairway is more than 3.25 meters above ground level or floor level, it shall be closely boarded, have adequate width and suitably fenced, as described in 2 above.
- 4. Every opening in floor of a building or in a working platform shall be provided with suitable mean to prevent fall of persons or materials by providing suitable fencing or railing with a minimum height of 1metre
- 5. Safe means of access shall be provide to all working platforms and other working places. Every ladder shall be securely fixed. No portable single ladder shall be over 9metres in length, width between side rails in a rung ladder shall in no case be less than 30cm for ladders up to and including 3metres in length. For longer ladders this width shall be increased at least 6mm, for each additional 30cm of length. Uniform step spacing shall not exceed 30cm

Adequate precautions shall be taken to prevent danger from electrical equipment. No materials on any of the sites shall be so stacked or placed as to cause danger or convenience to any person, or the public. The contractor shall provide all necessary fencing and light to protect public from accidents and shall be bound to bear expenses of defenses of every suit, action or other proceeding at law that may be brought by any person for injury sustained owing to neglect of the above precaution and pay any damages and cost which may be awarded in any such suit, action or proceedings to any such person or which may with the consent of the Contractor be paid to compromise any claim by any such person.

6 Excavation and Trenching

All trenches 1.5 meters or more in depth shall at all times be supplied with at least one ladder for each 30 meters in length or fraction thereof. Ladder shall be extended from bottom of trench to at least 1metre, above surface of the ground. Sides of a trench which is 1.5 meters or more in depth shall be stepped to give suitable slope, or securely held by timber bracing, so as to avoid the danger of sides collapsing.

Excavated materials shall not be placed within 1.5 meters of edge of trench of half of depth of trench, whichever is more. Cutting shall be done from top to bottom. Under no circumstances shall undermining or undercutting be done.

7 Demolition

Before any demolition work is commenced and also during the process of the work:-

- (a) All roads and open areas adjacent to the work site shall either be closed or suitably protected;
- (b) No electric cable or apparatus which is liable to be source of danger over a cable or apparatus used by operator shall remain electrically charged;
- (c) All practical steps shall be taken to prevent danger to persons employed, from risk of fire or explosion, or flooding. No floor, roof, or other part of building shall be so overloaded with debris or materials as to render it unsafe.
- 8. All necessary personal safety equipment has considered adequate by the Engineer-in-Charge shall be available for use of persons employed on the site and maintained in a condition suitable for immediate use, and the contractor shall take adequate steps to ensure proper use of equipment by those concerned.
- (a) Workers employed on mixing asphalt materials cement and lime mortars / concrete shall be provided with protective footwear and protective gloves.
- (b) Those engaged in handling any materials, which is injurious to eyes, should be provided with protective goggles.
- (c) Those engaged in welding works shall be provided with welders protective eyes shields
- (d) Stonebreakers shall be provided with protective goggle and protective clothing and seated at sufficiently safe intervals.
- (e) When workers are employed in sewers and manholes, which are in use, the contractor's ensure that manhole covers are opened and manholes are ventilated at least for an hour before workers are allowed to get into them. Manholes so opened shall be cordoned off with suitable railing and provided with warning signals or board to prevent accident to public.
- (f) The Contractor shall not employ men and women below the age of 18 on the work of painting with products containing lead in any form. Whenever men above the

- age of 18 are employed on the work of lead painting, the following precautions shall be taken.
- No paint containing lead or lead product shall be used except to the form of paste or ready-made paint.
- ii) Suitable faces masks shall be supplied for use by workers when paint is applied in the form of spray or a surface having lead paint dry rubbed and scraped.
- iii) Overalls shall be supplied by the Contractor to workmen and adequate facilities shall be provided to enable working painters to wash during and on cessation of work.
- When work is done near any place where there is risk of drowning all necessary equipment shall be provided and kept ready for use and all necessary steps taken for prompt rescue of any person in danger and adequate provision made for prompt first aid treatment of all injuries likely to be sustained during the course of work.
- 10. Use of hoisting machines and tackle including their attachment, anchorage and supports shall confirm to the following.
 - (a) i These shall be of good mechanical construction, sound materials and adequate strength and free from patent defects and shall be kept in good repair and in good working order.
 - (a) ii Every rope used in hoisting or lowering materials or as a means of suspension shall be of durable quality and adequate strength, and free in from patent defects.
 - (b) Every crane driver or hoisting appliance operator shall be properly qualified and no person under the age of 21 years shall be in charge of any hoisting machine including any scaffold, winch or give signals to operator.
 - (c) In case of every hoisting machine and of every chain ring hook, shackle swivel and pulley block use in hoisting or lowering or as means of suspension, safe working load shall be ascertained by adequate means. Every hoisting machine and all gear referred to above shall be plainly marked with safe working load. In case of a hoisting machine having a variable safe working load, each safe working load and the conditions under which it is applicable shall be clearly indicated. No part of any machine or of any gear referred to above in this paragraph shall be loaded beyond safe working load except for the purpose of testing.
 - (d) In case of departmental machine, safe working load shall be notified by the Engineer-in-Charge. As regards Contractor's machines the contractor shall notify safe working load of each machine to the Engineer-in-Charge whenever he brings it to site of work and get it verified by the Engineer-in-Charge.
- 11. Motors gearing, transmission, electric wiring and other dangerous part of hoisting appliance shall be provided with efficient safeguards; hoisting appliance shall be provided with such means as will reduce to the minimum risk of accidental descend of load. Adequate precautions shall be taken to reduce to the minimum risk of any part of a suspended load becoming accidentally displaced. When workers are employed on electrical installations, which are already energized,

- insulating mats, working apparel such as gloves sleeves and boots, as may be necessary shall be provided. Workers shall not wear any rings watches and carry keys or other materials, which are good conductors of electricity.
- 12. 12 All scaffolds, ladders and other safety devices mentioned or described herein shall be maintained in safe condition and no scaffold, ladder or equipment shall be altered or removed while it is in use. Adequate washing facilities shall be provided at or near places of work.
- 13. These safety provisions shall be brought to the notice of all concerned by display on a notice board at prominent places at the work spot. Persons responsible for ensuring compliance with the safety code shall be named therein by the Contractor.
- 14. To ensure effective enforcement of the rules and regulations relating to safety precautions, arrangement made by the contractor shall be opened to inspection by the Engineer-in-Charge or his representatives and the inspecting officers as defined in the Contractor's Labour Regulations.
- 15. Notwithstanding the above conditions 1 to 14, the Contractor is not exempted from the operation of any other Act of Rule in force.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

1. General

- 1.1 These special conditions shall be read in conjunction with the description of the item of work in Bill(s) of Quantities, the particular specifications, the CPWD specifications for Delhi works the latest Indian Standard Specification Codes and the drawings. All the above quoted documents shall be considered supplementary to each other, however, in the case of conflict amongst the various provisions. The following order of precedence shall be adopted: -
 - (a) In the case of conflict amongst the provisions of specifications:
 - i) Provisions in the Particular Specifications
 - ii) Provisions in the Special Conditions
 - iii) Provisions in the CPWD Specifications
 - iv) Provisions in the Indian Standard Specifications/Codes
 - (b) In the case of conflict amongst the Bill(s) of Quantities, Specifications and the Drawing:
 - i) Provisions in the Bills of Quantities
 - ii) Provisions in the Specifications
 - iii) Provisions in the detailed drawings
 - iv) Provisions in the general Drawings
- In case of conflict amongst the various drawings, decision of the Engineer -in-Charge shall be final and binding.
 If specification for any item of work are not covered by any of the document mentioned in para1-1 above, the same shall be decided and conveyed by the Engineer-in-Charge to the Contractor and shall be binding upon him/them.
- 1.3 The tenderer is advised to inspect the site to ascertain the nature of site, access thereto, local facilities for procurement of materials and working labour rates prevalent in the area, in fact all matters affecting his prices and execution of the work. The tenderers shall be deemed to have full knowledge of the site and drawings whether or not he actually inspect them.
- 1.4 The contractor shall mobilize and employ sufficient resources to achieve the Detailed schedule with in the broad framework of the accepted methods of working and safety. The contractor shall provide everything necessary for the proper carrying out of the work, including tools, plant and other things.
- 1.5 No additional payment will be made to the contractor for any multiple shift work or other incentive methods contemplated by him in his work schedules even though the time schedule is approved by the Engineer-in-Charge.
- 1.6 The work shall be executed as per the programme drawn or approved by the Engineer- in-Charge and it shall be so arranged as to have full co-ordination with any other agency employed at site. No claim for idle labour shall be entertained nor shall any claim on account of delay in the completion of the building work be tenable except extension of time secured by the contractor as stated elsewhere.

- 1.7 The Contractor shall permit free access and afford normal facilities and usual Convenience to other agencies or departmental workmen to carryout connected work or other services under separate arrangements. The contractor will not be allowed any extra payment on this account.
- 1.8 The contractor shall provide all equipments, instruments, labour and such other assistance required by the Engineer- in-Charge for measurement of the works, materials etc.
- 1.9 The contractor shall be obliged to carry out additional work to the tune of 25% of the contract value without any enhancement to agreed rates. Up to this limit there should be no adjustments in rates.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR THE CONTRACTORS

- 1. The Contractor shall commence the work immediately on issue of notice awarding the work/ work order.
- 2. The work shall be completed in all respects within 90 days and any delay in the part of the Contractor will render action being taken against him to enforce penal measures similar to the action envisaged in Clause 7, 8 & 9.
- 3. All materials brought by the Contractor for use in the work has to be examined and approved by the Engineer- in- charge or his representative before use. Inferior or defective materials will be rejected and the Contractor shall substitute them as per the directions of the Engineer-in-charge. Test certificates are to be produced where ever required.
- 4. The work shall be carried out in accordance with IE Rules, relevant ISI specifications and to the satisfaction of the Engineer-in-charge and in case of defective or improper work or work of poor workmanship the work will be re done, made good or amended as directed by the Engineer-in-charge at the cost of the Contractor.
- 5. In case of particular part of work not included originally but to be carried out by the Contractor for due completion, payment shall be made to contractors based on the rate derived from the rates for a similar class of work as specified in the Contract for the work or prevailing market rate or as per the CPWD Schedule of prevailing rates.
- 6. Power required for construction work such as drilling, welding, temporary illumination, etc. will be supplied to the Contractor on free of cost from the existing outlets.
- 7. In case of abandonment of work by the Contractor during the progress of the work, the Security Deposit at the credit of Contractors shall be forfeited and the balance work will be carried out by engaging a third agency and any extra cost incurred will be recovered from the defaulting Contractor.
- 8. The work shall be carried out subject to the above conditions and in the event of non-fulfillment on any of the conditions, the Contract will be treated as cancelled and action taken against the contractor deemed fit besides the forfeitures of the Security Deposit at the contractors credit.
- 9. In case the work is not completed in the manner mentioned above to the complete satisfaction of the company in every respect within the aforesaid time limit of 90 days from the date stipulated in the work order, a penalty of 0.5% of the actual work value will be deducted for every week beyond the date stipulated for completion on per day basis, subject however to a maximum of 10% of the value of actual work executed. It is agreed that time is the essence of the contract.
- 10. The Contractor shall visit the site and shall satisfy himself as to conditions under which the work is to be performed. No extra claim consequence of ignorance or on ground of insufficient description will be allowed at a later date.
- 11. The Contractor shall have to prepare the Scheme/Drawings for submission to Engineer-in-charge and get the Scheme/Drawings approved. All the work shall be carried out as per approved Scheme and drawings.

- 12. The Contractor shall submit all the as fitted drawings/ Software backup before submitting the final bill.
- 13. Contractor has to verify the Schedule of Quantities with site requirements before affecting the supply of materials. After verifying the site, the Contractor has to supply all required materials for completing the work. The materials supplied but not erected (rendered surplus) is the property of the Contractor and hence to be taken out by him. The payment if any made on this account will be deducted from the final bill of the Contractor for the subject work.
- 14. The Contractor shall make his own arrangement for the safe custody of his store.
- 15. During the execution of work, if minor alterations/additions are required, the same shall be done and nothing extra shall be paid on this account.
- 16. The quantities in the Schedule of quantities are provisional and the Contractor will be paid for the actual quantities of work executed at site at the rates quoted in his tender. The owner reserves the right to increase or decrease any of the quantities or to totally omit any item of work and any claims by the Contractor in this account will not be entertained.
- 17. The contractors should dispose the debris and rubbish on day to day basis as per directions of Engineer-in-charge. If the debris is not removed within 3 days, the Company will clear the debris and recovery for cost incurred will be debited from contractors account.
- 18. The rates quoted shall be inclusive of all Taxes and Duties and also inclusive of PF & ESI contributions to their workmen engaged on the work and are final.
- 19. Taxes on works contract and any other levies that may be enforced by the Government from time to time will be borne by the Contractor. Company will make deduction at source on this account at the prevalent rate as applicable for works contract. Statutory levies like Income tax, ESI etc. are to be borne by the Contractor. Contractor has to produce the muster roll along with ESI numbers, while submitting the bills.
- 20. Bills shall be submitted in GST Format only. 100% of the contract value will be released after satisfactory completion of the entire work.
- 21. Deposit will be refunded after completion of the Defects Liability period of One Year from the date of completion. During the defects liability period the contractor shall be responsible for any defects in materials or workmanship that may develop in the works and shall remedy the same at his own cost to the entire satisfaction of the Engineer-in-charge.
- 22. The Contractor shall have to carryout additional works to the tune of \pm 20% of total accepted contract value at the accepted rates if required.
- 23. The work will not be considered as complete till all the component of the Electrical installation provided for the Contractor that has been installed at site in all respects have been inspected/tested by the Engineer-in-charge to his entire satisfaction and a Safety Certificate issued by the Electrical Inspector.
- 24. Safety is the essence of this work. The contractor has to take all safety precautions during the course of work. The contractor has to make his own arrangements for providing safety appliances to their workmen engaged on the work.
- 25. The Contractor shall be responsible for any accidents or other compensation payable to the workmen employed and working under the control of the Contractor and the

- COMPANY has no sort of liability in the matter, and that if any payment would have to be made by the COMPANY the same shall be reimbursed by the Contractor.
- 26. For items of work involving use of cement, rate quoted shall include the cost of cement unless otherwise specified.
- 27. The manufactures of the materials required for the work shall be as per the List of Approved Manufactures for different materials
- 28. For any point not covered under these special conditions companys General Terms and Conditions of contract for Electrical works to be referred and CPWD specifications Vol. I & II, 2014 will also form part of the contract.

PRE-CONTRACT INTEGRITY PACT

PURCHASE ENQUIRY/ORDER No.
THIS Integrity Pact is made onday of20.
BETWEEN:
ITI Limited having its Registered & Corporate Office at ITI Bhavan, Dooravaninagar, Bengaluru – 560 016 under the administrative control of Ministry of Communications, Government of India (hereinafter called the Principal), which term shall unless excluded by or is repugnant to the context, be deemed to include its Chairman & Managing Director, Directors, Officers or any of them specified by the Chairman & Managing Director in this behalf and shall also include its successors and assigns) ON THE ONE PART
AND:
represented by
Preamble
WHEREAS the Principal intends to award, under laid down organizational procedures, contract for
In order to achieve these goals, the Principal has appointed an Independent External Monitor (IEM), who will monitor the tender process and the execution of the contract for compliance with the principles as mentioned herein this agreement.
WHEREAS, to meet the purpose aforesaid, both the parties have agreed to enter into this Integrity Pact the terms and conditions of which shall also be read as integral part

NOW THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF MUTUAL COVENANTS STIPULATED IN THIS PACT THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS AND THIS PACT WITHNESSETH AS UNDER:

and parcel of the Tender Documents and contract between the parties.

SECTION 1 - COMMITMENTS OF THE PRINCIPAL

The Principal commits itself to take all measures necessary to prevent corruption and to observe the following principles:

- a. No employee of the Principal, personally or through family members, will in connection with the tender for or the execution of the contract, demand, take a promise for or accept, for self or third person, any material or immaterial benefit which the personal is not legally entitled to.
- b. The Principal will, during the tender process treat all bidder(s) with equity and reason. The Principal will in particular, before and during the tender process, provide to all bidder(s) the same information and will not provide to any bidder(s) confidential/additional information through which the bidder(s) could obtain an advantage in relation to the tender process or the contract execution.
- c. The Principal will exclude from the process all known prejudiced persons.

If the Principal obtains information on the conduct of any of its employee, which is a criminal offence under IPC/PC Actor if there be a substantive suspicion in this regard, the Principal will inform the Chief Vigilance Officer and in addition can initiate disciplinary action as per its internal laid down Rules/ Regulations.

SECTION 2 - COMMITMENTS OF THE BIDDER/CONTRACTOR

The Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) commits himself to take all measures necessary to prevent corruption. He commits himself observe the following principles during the participation in the tender process and during the execution of the contract.

- a. The bidder(s)/contractor(s) will not, directly or through any other person or firm offer, promise or give to any of the Principal's employees involved in the tender process or the execution of the contract or to any third person any material or other benefit which he/she is not legally entitled to, in order to obtain in exchange any advantage of any kind whatsoever during the tender process or during the execution of the contract.
- b. The bidder(s)/contractor(s) will not enter with other bidders/contractors into any undisclosed agreement or understanding, whether formal or informal. This applies in particular to prices, specifications, certifications, subsidiary contracts, submission or non-submission of bids or any other actions to restrict competitiveness or to introduce cartelization in the bidding process.
- c. The bidder(s)/contractor(s) will not commit any offence under IPC/PC Act, further the bidder(s)/contractor(s) will not use improperly, for purposes of competition of personal gain, or pass onto others, any information or document provided by the

Principal as part of the business relationship, regarding plans, technical proposals and business details, including information contained or transmitted electronically.

- d. The Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) of foreign original shall disclose the name and address of the agents/representatives in India, if any. Similarly, the Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) of Indian Nationality shall furnish the name and address of the foreign principals, if any.
- e. The Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) will, when presenting the bid, disclose any and all payments made, are committed to or intend to make to agents, brokers or any other intermediaries in connection with the award of the contract.
- f. The Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) will not bring any outside influence and Govt. bodies directly or indirectly on the bidding process in furtherance to his bid.
- g. The Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) will not instigate third persons to commit offences outlined above or to be an accessory to such offences.

SECTION 3 – DISQUALIFICATION FROM TENDER PROCESS & EXCLUSION FROM FUTURE CONTRACTS

- 3.1 If the Bidder(s)/Contractor(s), during tender process or before the award of the contract or during execution has committed a transgression in violation of Section 2, above or in any other form such as to put his reliability or credibility in question the Principal is entitled to disqualify Bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) from the tender process.
- 3.2 If the Bidder(s)/Contractor(s), has committed a transgression through a violation of Section 2 of the above, such as to put his reliability or credibility into question, the Principal shall be entitled exclude including blacklisting for future tender/contract award process. The imposition and duration of the exclusion will be determined by the severity of the transgression. The severity will be determined by the Principal taking into consideration the full facts and circumstances of each case, particularly taking into account the number of transgression, the position of the transgressor within the company hierarchy of the Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) and the amount of the damage. The exclusion will be imposed for a period of minimum one year.
- 3.3 The Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) with its free consent and without any influence agrees and undertakes to respect and uphold the Principal's absolute right to resort to and impose such exclusion and further accepts and undertakes not to challenge or question such exclusion on any ground including the lack of any hearing before the decision to resort to such exclusion is taken. The undertaking is given freely and after obtaining independent legal advice.

- 3.4 A transgression is considered to have occurred if the Principal after due consideration of the available evidence concludes that on the basis of facts available there are no material doubts.
- 3.5 The decision of the Principal to the effect that breach of the provisions of this Integrity Pact has been committed by the Bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) shall be final and binding on the Bidder(s)/ Contractor(s), however the Bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) can approach IEM(s) appointed for the purpose of this Pact.
- 3.6 On occurrence of any sanctions/ disqualifications etc arising out from violation of integrity pact Bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) shall not entitled for any compensation on this account.
- 3.7 Subject to full satisfaction of the Principal, the exclusion of the Bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) could be revoked by the Principal if the Bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) can prove that he has restored/ recouped the damage caused by him and has installed a suitable corruption preventative system in his organization.

SECTION 4 - PREVIOUS TRANSGRESSION

- 4.1 The Bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) declares that no previous transgression occurred in the last 3 years immediately before signing of this Integrity Pact with any other company in any country conforming to the anti-corruption/ transparency International (TI) approach or with any other Public Sector Enterprises/ Undertaking in India of any Government Department in India that could justify his exclusion from the tender process.
- **4.2** If the Bidder(s)/ Contractor(s) makes incorrect statement on this subject, he can be disqualified from the tender process or action for his exclusion can be taken as mentioned under Section-3 of the above for transgressions of Section-2 of the above and shall be liable for compensation for damages as per Section- 5 of this Pact.

SECTION 5 - COMPENSATION FOR DAMAGE

- 5.1 If the Principal has disqualified the Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) from the tender process prior to the award according to Section 3 the Principal is entitled to forfeit the Earnest Money Deposit/Bid Security/ or demand and recover the damages equitant to Earnest Money Deposit/Bid Security apart from any other legal that may have accrued to the Principal.
- 5.2 In addition to 5.1 above the Principal shall be entitled to take recourse to the relevant provision of the contract related to termination of Contract due to Contractor default. In such case, the Principal shall be entitled to forfeit the Performance Bank Guarantee of the Contractor or demand and recover liquidate and all damages as per the provisions of the contract agreement against termination.

SECTION 6 - EQUAL TREATMENT OF ALL BIDDERS/CONTRACTORS

- 6.1 The Principal will enter into Integrity Pact on all identical terms with all bidders and contractors for identical cases.
- 6.2 The Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) undertakes to get this Pact signed by its subcontractor(s)/sub-vendor(s)/associate(s), if any, and to submit the same to the Principal along with the tender document/contract before signing the contract. The Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) shall be responsible for any violation(s) of the provisions laid down in the Integrity Pact Agreement by any of its subcontractors/sub-vendors/associates.
- 6.3 The Principal will disqualify from the tender process all bidders who do not sign this Integrity Pact or violate its provisions.

SECTION 7 - CRIMINAL CHARGES AGAINST VIOLATING BIDDER(S)/CONTRACTOR(S)

- 7.1 In case of any allegation of violation of any provisions of this Pact or payment of commission, the Principal or its agencies shall be entitled to examine all the documents including the Books of Accounts of the Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) and the Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) shall provide necessary information and documents in English and shall extend all help to the Principal for the purpose of verification of the documents.
- 7.2 If the Principal receives any information of conduct of a Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) or sub- contractor/sub-vendor/associates of the Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) which constitutes corruption or if the Principal has substantive suspicion in this regard, the Principal will inform the same to the Chief Vigilance Officer of the Principal for appropriate action.

SECTION 8 - INDEPENDENT EXTERNAL MONITOR(S)

- 8.1 The Principal appoints competent and credible Independent External Monitor(s) for this Pact. The task of the Monitor is to review independently and objectively, whether and to what extend the parties comply with the obligations under this pact.
- **8.2** The Monitor is not subject to any instructions by the representatives of the parties and performs his functions neutrally and independently. He will report to the Chairman and Managing Director of the Principal.
- 8.3 The Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) accepts that the Monitor has the right to access without restriction to all product documentation of the Principal including that provided by the Bidder(s)/Contractor(s). The Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) will also grant the Monitor, upon his request and demonstration of a valid interest, unrestricted and unconditional access to his project documentation. The Monitor is under contractual obligation to treat the information and documents Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) with confidentiality.
- 8.4 The Principal will provide to the Monitor sufficient information about all meetings among the parties related to the project provided such meeting could

have an impact on the contractual relations between the Principal and the Bidder(s)/Contractor(s). As soon as the Monitor notices, or believes to notice, a violation of this agreement, he will so inform the Management of the Principal and request the Management to discontinue or take corrective action, or to take other relevant action. The monitor can in this regard submit non-binding recommendations. Beyond this, the Monitor has no right to demand from the parties that they act in specific manner, refrain from action or tolerate action.

- 8.5 The Monitor will submit a written report to the Chairman & Managing Director of the Principal within a reasonable time from the date of reference or intimation to him by the principal and, should the occasion arise, submit proposals for correcting problematic situations.
- 8.6 If the Monitor has reported to the Chairman & Managing Director of the Principal a substantiated suspicion of an offence under relevant IPC/PC Act, and the Chairman & Managing Director of the Principal has not, within the reasonable time taken visible action to proceed against such offence or reported it to the Chief Vigilance Officer, the Monitor may also transmit this information directly to the Central Vigilance Commissioner.
- 8.7 The word 'Monitor' would include both singular and plural.
- 8.8 Details of the Independent External Monitor appointed by the Principal at present is furnished below: -

IEM - I

Shri Atul Jindal, IFS (Retd.): 3/10 Vishesh Khand, Opp. Little Friend School, Gomti Nagar, Lucknow-226010 (UP)

IEM - II

Shri Benny John, IRS (Retd.): Villa No. 36, Kent Plam Villas, Fort Valley Township, Athani, Kakkanad, Ernakulam, Kerala – 682 030.

Any changes to the same as required / desired by statutory authorities is applicable.

SECTION 9 - PACT DURATION

- 9.1 This Pact begins when both the parties have legally signed it. It expires after 12 months on completion of the warranty/guarantee period of the project / work awarded, to the fullest satisfaction of the Principal.
- **9.2** If the Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) is unsuccessful, the Pact will automatically become invalid after three months on evidence of failure on the part of the Bidder(s)/Contractor(s).

9.3 If any claim is lodged/made during the validity of the Pact, the same shall be binding and continue to be valid despite the lapse of the Pact unless it is discharged/determined by the Chairman and Managing Director of the Principal.

SECTION 10 - OTHER PROVISIONS

- **10.1** The Pact is subject to the Law as applicable in Indian Territory. The place of performance and jurisdiction shall the seat of the Principal.
- 10.2 The actions stipulated in this Pact are without prejudice to any other legal action that may follow in accordance with the provisions of the extant law in force relating to any civil or criminal proceedings.
- **10.3** This pact is subject to Indian Law, place of performance and jurisdiction is the Registered & Corporate Office of the Principal at Bengaluru.
- 10.4 Changes and supplements as well as termination notices need to be made in writing by both the parties. Side agreements have not been made.
- **10.5** If the Bidder(s)/Contractor(s) or a partnership, the pact must be signed by all consortium members and partners.
- 10.6 Should one or several provisions of this pact turn out to be invalid, the remainder of this pact remains valid. In this case, the parties will strive to come to an agreement to their original intentions.
- 10.7 Any disputes/ difference arising between the parties with regard to term of this Pact, any action taken by the Principal in accordance with this Pact or interpretation thereof shall not be subject to any Arbitration.
- **10.8** The action stipulates in this Integrity Pact are without prejudice to any other legal action that may follow in accordance with the provisions of the extant law in force relating to any civil or criminal proceedings.

In witness whereof the parties have signed and executed this Pact at the place and date first done mentioned in the presence of the witnesses:

For PRINCIPAL	For BIDDER(S)/CONTRACTOR(S)				
(Name & Designation)	(Name & Designation)				
Witness	Witness				
1)	1)				
2)	2)				

SITE VISIT REPORT LETTER

	Date:
То,	
Manager (MM&CS) ITI Limited, PALAKKAD PLANT, PALAKKAD MAIN RD, KANJIKODE KERALA 678623	
Sub. : Site Visit Report - Painting Wor Palakkad	k of Electrical Street Light Poles at ITI Limited,
Ref.: ITI's NIT No. ITI/PKD/PE/2024	4/1504
This has reference to above referred Novel Poles at ITI Limited, Palakkad.	IT for Painting Work of Electrical Street Light
I/We hereby declare that we have visit	ited site.
land, soil conditions, availability of w	h site conditions, approach to site, requirement of vater, requirement of tender conditions, etc. I/We cute the projects. I/We have no problems in a them in the given time period.
Thanking you,	
Yours faithfully	
(Signature of Bidder)	(Signature ITI authorities)
Name of Bidder	Designation

Annexure-IV

PART-'B' - PRICE BID

Schedule of Quantity

Painting Work of Electrical Street Light Poles at ITI Limited, Palakkad

NIT	Ref No.	ITI/PKD,	I/PKD/PE/2024/1504						
Name of the Contractor									
Sl. No.	Description			Unit	Qty	Rate	GST	Amount	
1	Painting of 10M Street Light Pole with Arm as per Scope of the Work			Nos	20				
2	Painting of 4M Street Light Pole with Arm as per Scope of the Work			Nos	23				
3	Painting of 3M Street Light Pole with Arm as per Scope of the Work			Nos	12				
Grand Total									
